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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWmR DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

It is with great pleasure that the Board presents our interim report for the
six months ended 31 December 2016 (“THFY2017").

UMP is one of the leading corporate healthcare solutions providers in
Hong Kong serving more than 1.4 million medical and dental patient
visits annually. UMP partners with corporations and insurance
companies in the design and administration of corporate healthcare
benefits plans for, and provides healthcare services to, such members,
employees and policyholders. Such business model allows us to have a
sticky, steady and growing patient base at the primary care entry level,
and thereafter allowing UMP to deliver additional add-on services to
customers including specialist services, secondary dental services and
other auxiliary services. Corporations and insurance companies also
welcome such partnership with UMP as we have a track record of
delivering cost-effective and a comprehensive suite of healthcare
solutions according to their budget and their needs.

UMP’s existing business has continued to perform well in THFY2017. In
THFY2017, as UMP continues to gain further brand recognition for its
services from its corporate customers and patients, total number of
patient visits have continued to increase as compared to same period in
THFY2016. In addition, UMP has successfully opened its new medical
imaging and day surgery centre in Kowloon. Such new centre has
performed satisfactorily since its opening, with patients providing
excellent feedback on our services and our new facilities. UMP has also
been investing in different specialties and is currently reviewing
numerous potential acquisition opportunities to strengthen UMP’s
presence, service offerings and network locations in Hong Kong and
Macau.

While UMP’s existing business has performed well, our expansion into
the PRC market has led to a decrease in our reported net profit as we
incur capital and expenses relating to the establishment of medical
centres and our corporate head offices for business development in both
Beijing and Shanghai.

UMP’s core strength continues to be in the provision of corporate
healthcare solutions. The lack of a medical centre network in China,
however, means that UMP has been at the forefront investing in the
setting up of medical centres in both Beijing and Shanghai. Based on our
experience in Hong Kong and similar experiences elsewhere, while we
are confident that such medical centres will perform well in the long run
when both patients and doctors becoming increasingly accustomed the
location and level of services at such medical centres, the incubation
period for these medical centres will no doubt lead to short to medium
term operating losses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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We are fully aware of the negative financial impact arising from the
operating expenses relating to the PRC Developing Business. To address
such negative impact, we have prepared a proposal, subject to
independent shareholders’ approval, whereby the Company will be
partnering up with Healthcare Ventures (a substantial shareholder of the
Company) and NWS (659:HK) to pursue an asset-light operating model.
Under such asset-light operating model, HAML (a 50:50 joint venture
owned by Healthcare Ventures and NWS Subsidiary) will take the lead
to invest, establish and acquire clinics in the PRC and will appoint us as
the manager to manage such clinics. Subject to meeting certain
requirements, we will be receiving management fees for managing such
clinics. HAML will first acquire the four PRC clinics recently established
by us. Going forward, we will instead be focusing on the development of
our corporate healthcare solutions business in the PRC, leveraging both
on the network of clinics owned by HAML, as well as clinics owned and
operated by other owners. We believe that such new asset-light model
will be beneficial to the Company and our shareholders as a whole. For
further details of the aforesaid proposal, please refer to the
Announcement and the Circular.*

OUR BUSINESS

UMP’s business scope consists of the following business lines:

1.  Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution Services
UMP provides corporate healthcare solutions through the design
and administration of tailored healthcare benefits plans for its
Contract Customers. UMP aims to provide convenient, reliable,
coordinated, comprehensive and affordable healthcare services
through the well-established and multi-specialties UMP Network.
As at 31 December 2016, the UMP Network comprises more than
600 points of services located across Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s Contract Customers comprise (i) insurance companies,
which enter into contracts with the Group for healthcare services
for their policyholders or employees of their policyholders and (ii)
corporations, which enter into contracts with the Group for
healthcare services for their employees and/or their dependants.
When designing healthcare benefits plans, the Group collaborates
closely with the Contract Customers and designs and refines
corporate healthcare benefits plans, with each plan tailored to each
customer’s needs based on factors such as industry or occupational
health-related concerns, scope of healthcare benefits desired,
employee demographic as well as their budget.

* Completion of the acquisition by HAML and the issue and allotment of new shares by
UMP Healthcare China and UMP Healthcare (Beijing) as described in the
Announcement and the Circular took place on 23 March 2017.
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Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

UMP provides medical, dental and auxiliary services to Self-paid
Patients. For medical services, UMP provides (i) general practice
services, which serves as the first point of contact for the patients
and (ii) specialist services covering more than 18 different
specialties. For dental services, UMP provides both primary dental
care and secondary dental care such as dental implants. For
auxiliary services, UMP provides services such as imaging and
laboratory services, physiotherapy and vision care.

PRC Health Check-up Business

Our PRC Health Check-up Business currently operates one medical
centre in Beijing and two medical centres in Shanghai, delivering
on average over 2,000 health check-ups per month for the PRC
residents traveling abroad for study or for work. Our PRC Health
Check-up Business also conducts health check-ups for corporate
employees.

PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical Healthcare
Business (PRC Developing Business)

Our PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical Healthcare
Business represents our development of corporate healthcare
solutions and clinical healthcare services in major cities in the
PRC. The first phase of our investment will be focused on Beijing
and Shanghai:

. in Beijing, we have partnered up with CR Phoenix Healthcare
Group through a 50:50 joint venture. Such joint venture
arrangement with CR Phoenix will be subject to change
following the series of transactions as described in the
Announcement and the Circular, which are expected to be
put forth to shareholders for vote and approval on 27
February 2017;* and

° in Shanghai, through our wholly owned operations.

Completion of the acquisition by HAML and the issue and allotment of new shares by
UMP Healthcare China and UMP Healthcare (Beijing) as described in the
Announcement and the Circular took place on 23 March 2017.
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BUSINESS LINES ANALYSIS

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 7.0% from HK$142.7
million to HK$152.8 million (before intersegment elimination) due to a
general increase in patient visits and average spending per visit, while
our operating profit (operating profit before tax and before non-recurring
items) has increased 17.9% from HK$15.1 million to HK$17.8 million.
Our results show that we are able to generate operating leverage through
control of our administration costs, while generating increase in revenue
through the marketing to and the delivering of a comprehensive suite of
services to our corporate customers, insurance companies and patients.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line has increased 10.2% from HK$104.1
million to HK$114.7 million (before intersegment elimination) due to a
general increase in patient visits and average spending per visit, while
our operating profit (operating profit before tax and before non-recurring
items) has decreased 39.3% from HK$14.0 million to HK$8.5 million.
The increase in revenue is in part due to the expansion of specialist
services and auxiliary services to our patients in Kowloon during
THFY2017 and for the same reason these newly set up centres which are
still in the ramp-up period dragged down the operating profit.

PRC Health Check-up Business

We completed the acquisition of the PRC Health Check-up Business on
30 October 2015, which generated revenue of HK$5.2 million between
31 October 2015 and 31 December 2015.

Revenue for this business for the six months ended 31 December 2016
has been recorded for HK$18.1 million. Assuming the acquisition was
completed on 1 July 2015, our PRC Health Check-up Business would
have generated revenue of HK$16.9 million for the six months ended 31
December 2015, representing a period-to-period increase of 7.1%.
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PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical Healthcare Business

Our PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution Business is currently in
development phase and therefore did not generate any revenue in
THFY2017, while the PRC Clinical Healthcare Business has recorded
revenue of HK$0.8 million by the two clinics which commenced
business in August 2016 and November 2016.

The following table sets out the revenue and operating profit for our
business lines for the six months ended 31 December 2016 and the

corresponding period for comparison:

Revenue by business lines

FEGCEBRRBRARIRRGRERRRE
%

T B 1b S BE R R ARR T RETSIH R
R ER2017 HBERE FXET
EEAMMAWA - M BEBRAREBEREESH
B2 BRA08EEB T  ZMB AT
DRI 2016F 8 A& 2016F 11 AFIKREE -

TRE|EHERFEZE 2016512 A31 BIE/NEAR
LA K2 48 FE AR B LL SR A0 E TS AR WA I A8 & 7
NES e

BEBAREI D RA

Six months ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEAEA

2016 2015 Increase
2016 F 20154 Byl
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate BB R EERRRE
Healthcare Solution Services iR R T RS 152,785 142,742 7.0%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical BB RRPIERR B R R 2
Healthcare Services R 7% 114,684 104,075 10.2%
PRC Health Check-up Business B R R 7 18,063 5191 NMEZETK
PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions & B> ¥EEFEREBEAFT R
Clinical Healthcare Business N ERIR B R R X 849 - NMEETK
TOTAL &5t 286,381 252,008 13.6%
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Operating profit by business lines

BEBARE| D ETFB

Six months ended 31 December Increase/
BZE12A31HILAEA (decrease)
2016 2015 gm/
2016 20154 Crtd)
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate B8 KRB EBERRE
Healthcare Solution Services iR R T RS 17,843 15,138 17.9%
Operating profit margin RE R = 11.7% 10.6%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical &8 KRR IR B BRRE R
Healthcare Services 8,521 13,975 (39.0%)
Operating profit margin N 7.4% 13.4%
PRC Health Check-up Business PR B S 5,397 1,856 NM E&ET K
Operating profit margin R R 29.9% 35.8%
PRC Corporate Healthcare Solutions & A Bl 2 BB (RIERRR 5
Clinical Healthcare Business K R BB AR E RS (20,444) (3,525) NM E&ETK
(1) Business lines revenue presented above are before intersegment sales elimination M EBRRARETDEBME S KA
(2)  Operating profit by business lines represent operating profit before tax for each ~ (2) HEEBRIEDELENHREEZBEOBRHALLET
business line and excluding non-recurring items B AeEEgELIRE
(3)  Operating losses for PRC Corporate Healthcare Solution & Clinical Healthcare — (3) HECFBBERERRT RRERRBRREEGE

Business for the six months ended 31 December 2016 include losses of PRC Corporate
Healthcare Solutions Business in Shanghai, PRC Clinical Healthcare Business in
Shanghai and share of loss of joint ventures of HK$9.5 million (six months ended 31
December 2015: HK$3.3 million) from the joint venture with CR Phoenix Healthcare
Group in Beijing. The losses primarily represent startup costs including rental
expenses, office renovation, recruitment of management and medical staff and training

costs

OUTLOOK

Hong Kong and Macau

With the expansion of our specialist and medical imaging services in
Hong Kong, we look forward to establishing a Hong Kong-China-Macau
outpatient and inpatient service network to provide individuals with
bespoke healthcare management services and access to private and
tertiary hospital referrals.

We shall work closely with corporations and medical insurance
organisations on healthcare solutions and global budgets, and, with a
mixture of caution, innovation and flexibility, we strive to capture the
largest healthcare services market share in this region.
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China

The ongoing healthcare reform has encouraged greater private sector
participation to provide a more diverse scope of medical services to the
growing middle class population, and to reduce overcrowding in public
facilities.

We intend to build a strong primary healthcare workforce by offering
career pathways for local medical and health workers with enhanced
compensation, structured training and accreditation. The process is
challenging, but we hope this strategic planning will help alleviate the
shortage of qualified family medicine doctors and importantly improve
population’s trust in the quality of care at the primary care level.

We believe that there is significant market demand for corporate
healthcare solution and private clinical healthcare services in the PRC, in
particular in major first tier cities. The PRC’s growing middle class
population has become increasingly health conscious and often felt
under served by the existing public hospital system due to long waiting
time. Given the middle class’s rising income, there is a growing demand
and willingness to pay for more convenient medical access and quality
healthcare services.

Private healthcare services providers like us are well-positioned to fill this
demand gap. The middle class population, with strong purchasing
power, generally view good health as a priority in achieving a better
quality of life for their families. Therefore, the growth of the middle class
population provides huge growth potential for healthcare services
providers in the PRC. In addition, we believe that corporations in the
PRC are increasingly looking for alternative ways to retain their staff. The
ability to offer integrated healthcare solutions to employees and their
family members will likely become one of the key considerations for
employees in choosing which corporation to join.

We see significant market potential for UMP to extend our corporate
healthcare solution services to the PRC market. Over the past 20 years,
we have accumulated significant experience in the design and
administration of health plans with insurance companies, ultimately
delivering a win-win situation where both insurance companies and a
medical group like us are able to generate financial returns. Through our
accumulated knowhow, we will develop customized solutions that cater
to both corporates and insurance companies.

10 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED /2016/2017 INTERIM REPORT
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FINANCIAL REVIEWS
THFY2017 compared to THFY2016

Revenue

During THFY2017, we primarily generated revenue from (i) the provision
of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers in Hong Kong
and Macau, (ii) the provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong
Kong and Macau and (iii) the PRC Health Check-up Business and
primarily represents revenue generated from the provision of medical
examinations for local residents in the PRC and immigration visa
applicants.

We are actively expanding our corporate healthcare solutions and
clinical healthcare business in both Beijing (through, currently, our 50:50
joint venture with CR Phoenix Healthcare Group) and Shanghai through
the establishment of medical centre network in these two cities. Our PRC
Corporate Healthcare Solution Business is currently in development
phase and therefore did not generate any revenue in THFY2017,while
the PRC Clinical Healthcare Business has recorded revenue of HK$0.8
million by the two clinics which commenced business in August 2016
and November 2016.

Total consolidated revenue increased by 15.6% from HK$216.5 million
in THFY2016 to HK$250.2 million in THFY2017, primarily due (i) to an
increase in revenue from HK$211.3 million to HK$231.3 million from
the provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract
Customers and provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid
Patients in Hong Kong and Macau, and (ii) an increase in revenue from
HK$5.2 million to HK$18.1 million from the PRC Health Check-up
Business, which we acquired on 30 October 2015.
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Provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract Customers
in Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services to
Contract Customers in Hong Kong and Macau increased 7.0% from
HK$142.3 million in THFY2016 to HK$152.2 million in THFY2017.

¢ Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical Services
to Contract Customers increased by 7.7% from HK$134.5 million
for THFY2016 to HK$144.9 million for THFY2017, primarily due
to an increase in the average price per patient visit in THFY2017 as
well as the increase in the number of visits from the patients
seeking Medical Services by 4.3% from approximately 579,000 in
THFY2016 to 604,000 in THFY2017.

J Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental Services
to Contract Customers remained relatively stable at the range of
HK$7.3 million to HK$7.8 million for both THFY2016 and
THFY2017. The number of visits slightly decreased from 11,094 in
1HFY2016 to 10,841 in THFY2017.

Provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong and Macau

e Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical Services
to Self-paid Patients increased by 12.2% from HK$46.8 million for
THFY2016 to HK$52.5 million for THFY2017, primarily due to an
increase in the average price per patient visit in THFY2017 driven
by higher spending by patients who needed to utilise our auxiliary
services.

J Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental Services
to Self-paid Patients increased by 19.8% from HK$22.2 million for
THFY2016 to HK$26.6 million for THFY2017. The average price
per patient visit increased in THFY2017.
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PRC Health Check-up Business

Revenue contribution from the PRC Health Check-up Business, which
we acquired on 30 October 2015, increased from HK$5.2 million in
THFY2016 to HK$18.1 million in THFY2017. The number of patient
visits for THFY2017 was 16,614.

For reference, the PRC Health Check-up Business generated revenue of
HK$11.7 million from 1 July 2015 to 30 October 2015. For illustration
purposes, if we had completed the acquisition on 1 July 2015, the
revenue for the PRC Health Check-up Business would have increased by
7.1% from HK$16.9 million in THFY2016 to HK$18.1 million in
THFY2017 (or an increase of 14.3% under constant RMB currency basis).
The following table provides further breakdown of the revenue, visits
regarding the PRC Health Check-up Business:

R

RE B RER(EPMN2015F10 A30H
UWEE) I A BB 2016 TN E F¥ 452
BEALEE207VRFELF<FI181EE
BIL2017H BN FE EF¥FREEAHAE
16,614 AR °

MHBE  PRBREBFN205F7A1BE
201510 A30BEERA1I.7BESET o 1E
SHEAAE - MERFIR2015F7 A1 8 ea Uk -
FERBHREBWABER2016 M BEE ¥ F
16.9A BB TTEMNT7.1%E 2017 M REE 3
F18.1BEB T (HIRETARBEB I EN
MN143%) c TREHIPBEEBREFAOWA
T2 ABAE— SR -

Six months ended 31 December Increase/
HE12A3181EXEA (decrease)
2016 2015 i/
2016 F 20154 CR4)
Revenue contribution post-acquisition 720154 10 A 30 B W&
on 30 October 2015 (HK$'000) B A TR (THETT) 18,063 5191 NMEETK
Revenue per local currency (RMB’000) iz & i & E WA
(ARETT) 16,187 4,347 NMEZETK
No. of visits 2 AR 16,614 6,646 NMEETK
Revenue contribution assuming REWER 20157 A1 H
acquisition was completed on TERHIBAETR (T7E7T)
1 July 2015 (HK$’000) 18,063 16,905 6.9%
Revenue per local currency (RMB’000)  1ZE b E B E UA
(AR®T7T) 16,187 14,158 14.3%
No. of visits T2 A 16,614 17,209 (3.5%)
2015 RMB:HKD exchange rate at 1.19405 2015 F ARB B TTERXS1.19405
2016 RMB:HKD exchange rate at 1.11589 2016 F ARB B TEE51.11589
2016/2017 R EASRE / B A B BIR AR
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains primarily comprise administrative support fees
(including fees derived from providing administrative support to Affiliated
Doctors, Affiliated Dentists and Affiliated Auxiliary Services Providers),
dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and interest income from held-to-maturity investments.

Other income and gains decreased by 51.6% from HK$6.4 million in
THFY2016 to HK$3.1 million in THFY2017. The period-to-period
decrease was primarily due to the one-off gain on bargain purchase of
HK$3.5 million from the acquisition of the PRC Health Check-up
Business in THFY2016 did not recur in THFY2017.

Professional Services Expenses
Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to Doctors,
Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical Services, Dental
Services and Auxiliary Services rendered within the UMP Network, as
well as fees paid to third party laboratories and testing centres for
services rendered to the Group.

Professional services expenses increased by 14.0% from HK$121.1
million for THFY2016 to HK$138.1 million for THFY2017, primarily due
to an increase in the cost of services rendered by doctors, dentists and
other professionals, which was in line with the Group’s increased
revenue in THFY2017.

Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related costs,
equity-settled share-based payment expense, as well as pension scheme
contributions for nurses and administrative personnel, and also include
those of the Directors and key management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 40.2% from HK$34.3 million for
THFY2016 to HK$48.1 million for THFY2017. Employee benefit expense
increased primarily due to general increase in staff costs, full-period
recognition of staffing expenses from the PRC Health Check-up Business
for THFY2017 while there were 2-month recognition following the
completion of the acquisition on 30 October 2015 in THFY2016, the
clinical staff expenses relating to the operation of the Shanghai clinic
which commenced operations in July 2016, the establishment of the
corporate head office in Shanghai, the expansion of team members in
Shanghai for the PRC corporate healthcare solutions business, increase in
number of staff for the headquarter office and clinics in Hong Kong in
connection with the Group’s expansion plans in PRC and Hong Kong.
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Property Rental and Related Expenses

Property rental and related expenses increased by 56.9% from HK$13.0
million for THFY2016 to HK$20.4 million for THFY2017, primarily due
to the full-period recognition of rental expenses from the PRC Health
Check-up Business for THFY2017 while there were 2-month recognition
following the completion of the acquisition on 30 October 2015 in
THFY2016, the establishment of the Shanghai clinic as well as the
corporate head office in Shanghai and the increase in rent for those
existing premises for which leases were renewed.

Cost of Inventories Consumed

Cost of inventories consumed increased by 21.2% from HK$8.5 million
for THFY2016 to HK$10.3 million for THFY2017, primarily due to an
increase in the amount of drugs and other medical consumables
consumed for the provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid
Patients in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. Such increase is generally in
line with the increase in revenue from the provision of clinical healthcare
services in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC in THFY2017.

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by 92.9% from HK$4.2 million
for THFY2016 to HK$8.1 million for THFY2017, primarily due to the
purchase of specialised equipment and decoration for the new medical
imaging centre and day surgery centre in Kowloon, the setting up of the
Shanghai clinic and the refurbishment of existing facilities in Hong Kong.

Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses, net primarily comprise general overhead expenses such
as utilities, operation and other administrative expenses as well as repair
and maintenance expenses incurred with respect to the Group’s offices
and medical equipment, audit fees, printing expenses and bank charges.

Other expenses, net, decreased by 54.6% from HK$26.9 million in
THFY2016 to HK$12.2 million in THFY2017, primarily due to HK$15.1
million of expenses incurred in connection with the Global Offering did
not recur in THFY2017.
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Share of Profits and Losses of Joint Ventures

Share of losses of joint ventures increased by 186.9% from HK$3.3
million in THFY2016 to HK$9.5 million in THFY2017. Within such
losses there were (i) incremental employee benefit expense relating to the
establishment of the corporate head office in Beijing, (ii) clinical staff
expenses relating to the operation of the Beijing clinic in Fortune Plaza
(which commenced operations in October 2016), (iii) pre-opening
expenses (both rental and employee benefit expenses) relating to the
establishment of another two clinics in Beijing, which are expected to
commence operations in the first half of 2017 and (iv) rental expenses for
the corporate head office in Beijing.

Summary of operational data for THFY2017 with comparative figures for

TMEAERARAFBEREE
DEAEERREIEM2016 MIREE EFF3.3
AEATEIN186.9%F 2017 MIEE 44
9.5EBEIL - ﬁ%ﬁ)&ﬂé@%(i)miﬁ;&i
ARIBHRBEMGINNESRAFAS ()&
ﬁAHﬁ%“EP/D%@itiﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁzomimﬂF#EJ
BB BRNZ T8 TR (i) Eﬁiﬁ/\it,‘?ﬁﬁ
FBINMEZ T (FEEAR 2017 F L ¥ FHmKE
E)BBNAXNRX (2ERE kEBEHF
Y RvIERRARRREEMNEERE -

2017 M E ¥ FRLLEE 2016 B

THFY2016: FEEFFHOHBREFHE
Revenue by operating segment RICE DR E 5 WA
Six months ended 31 December Increase/
HZE12A31BILLAEA (decrease)
2016 2015 i,
2016 £ 20154 ORA)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REESEX) (REER)
Provision of corporate healthcare RBOEBBRREBRTR
solution services RS 152,248 142,302 7.0%
Medical =83 144,941 134,516 7.8%
Dental Rl 7,307 7,786 (6.2%)
Provision of clinical healthcare services 12 it [ KRB B R IRIE 98,000 74,171 32.1%
Medical B 71,418 51,960 37.4%
Dental b 26,582 22,211 19.7%
TOTAL &5Er 250,248 216,473 15.6%
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Number of visits by operating segment BREEDBEI DD IRE
Six months ended 31 December Increase/
BZE12A31HLEXEA (decrease)
2016 2015 #an
2016 20154 CRi)
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Provision of corporate healthcare RHUGEBBRFERMERSTR
solution services PR 614,335 589,914 4.1%
Medical BE 603,494 578,820 4.3%
Dental oFEb 10,841 11,094 (2.3%)
Provision of clinical healthcare services 12 i R B8 B R 2 BR 3% 88,879 79,617 11.6%
Medical BB 70,769 61,627 14.8%
Dental F#k 18,110 17,990 0.7%
TOTAL a5t 703,214 669,531 5.0%
KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS EREARRIE R
Property, Plant and Equipment ME - BMENKE
Property, plant and equipment comprise leasehold improvements,  #)% - BiRE N R & B 15 E A £ B L 815 Fr KR 4K

furniture, fixtures and office equipment, medical equipment, computer
equipment and software, and motor vehicle in relation to the Group’s
premises and operations. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

As at 31 December 2016 and 30 June 2016, the Group’s property, plant
and equipment amounted to HK$51.0 million (including those of a
disposal group classified as held for sale) and HK$38.4 million,
respectively. The increase was primarily due to the establishment of new
medical imaging centre and the day surgery centre in Kowloon.

Held-to-maturity Investments

Held-to-maturity investments primarily represent the marketable
corporate bonds issued by listed corporations with fixed interest rates
from 1.33% to 4.875% per annum. The marketable debt securities which
will mature within one year and more than one year are classified as
current assets and non-current assets, respectively. The Group receives
related interest payments semi-annually and annually.

As at 31 December 2016 and 30 June 2016, the Group’s held-to-maturity
investments amounted to HK$60.7 million (of which HK$15.0 million is
classified as current assets and HK$45.7 million is classified as non-
current assets) and HK$56.7 million (of which HK$30.0 million is
classified as current assets and HK$26.7 million is classified as non-
current assets), respectively.
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NER i BIERE R ARA
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Goodwill

Goodwill primarily represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

As at 31 December 2016 and 30 June 2016, the Group’s goodwill
amounted to HK$41.4 million and HK$32.8 million, respectively. The
increase in goodwill was primarily due to the acquisition of a medical
clinic in Shanghai during the period.

Investments in Joint Ventures

We established a 50:50 joint venture company, UMP Healthcare
(Beijing), with CR Phoenix Healthcare Group in July 2015. Under the
terms of the original agreement, both UMP and CR Phoenix have
undertaken to commit up to RMB50 million each into UMP Healthcare
(Beijing). Such funds will be used to establish the Healthcare
Management Model and a medical centre network in Beijing, as well as
to recruit local management team and healthcare professionals. Please
also refer to the Announcement and the Circular and the section headed
“Business Overview and Outlook” of this report in relation to, among
other things, the proposed subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) by UMP Healthcare China pursuant to which UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) will become a subsidiary of the Company. Completion of the
aforesaid subscription has not yet been taken place as at the date of this
report.*

We also established a 50:50 joint venture company, Shanghai He Dun,
with a dentist group in late July 2016 for the purpose of establishment of
a platform with dental professionals in Shanghai and to provide dental
services to the Group in Shanghai.

As at 31 December 2016, the net carrying value of the investments,
including the share of net assets or net liabilities and the amount due
from the joint ventures, in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) and Shanghai He
Dun amounted to HK$50.5 million and HK$1.0 million respectively,
resulting a total of HK$51.5 million.

The net carrying value of the investments in UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
representing capital injection of HK$29.1 million (or RMB24.25 million
equivalent) from UMP Healthcare China to UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
(RMB24.25 million, being approximately 48.5% of the RMB50 million
fund commitment under the terms of the joint venture agreement) and
the certain set-up costs for the three medical centres that have been paid
by UMP on behalf of UMP Healthcare (Beijing), offsetted by the HK$19.3
million accumulated share of loss from UMP Healthcare (Beijing).
* Completion of the acquisition by HAML and the issue and allotment of new shares by
UMP Healthcare China and UMP Healthcare (Beijing) as described in the

Announcement and the Circular took place on 23 March 2017.
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The net carrying value of the investments in Shanghai He Dun
representing capital injection of HK$1.1 million (or RMB1.0 million
equivalent) from UMP to Shanghai He Dun, offsetted by the HK$0.14
million share of loss from Shanghai He Dun.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables primarily comprise receivables due from Contract
Customers under fee for service plans and capitation plans. Most Self-
paid Patients of medical and dental practices settle in cash, although
payments made by credit card will be classified as trade receivables until
they are settled (typically within two to three days). Contract Customers
typically settle payments within one to two months of the provision of
services to their members. The Group allows an average credit period of
30 to 90 days to its Contract Customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2016 and 30 June 2016, the Group’s trade
receivables amounted to HK$59.0 million (including those of a disposal
group classified as held for sale) and HK$47.5 million, respectively. The
semi-annual receivable turnover ratio remained stable at 4.7 and 4.4 for
THFY2017 and THFY2016 respectively. The receivable turnover ratio
was calculated by dividing the Group’s turnover during a given period
by the average trade receivables during the same period.

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily comprise professional fees accrued and owing
to Affiliated Doctors and amounts owing to suppliers of medical
equipment and consumables. Trade payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled within one to three months.

The Group’s trade payables amounted to HK$49.0 million (including
those of a disposal group classified as held for sale) and HK$47.3 million
respectively, as at 31 December 2016 and 30 June 2016, respectively.

Net Change in Financial Position

The Group’s net assets amounted to HK$396.2 million and HK$410.6
million as at 31 December 2016 and 30 June 2016, respectively. The
decrease was primarily due to the distribution of FY2016 final dividend
for HK$14.7 million and the purchase of shares for the Share Award
Scheme amounted to HK$4.5 million, partly offset by the net profit for
THFY2017 amounted to HK$3.0 million and the increase in other
reserves.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Upon the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Group intended to
satisfy its liquidity requirements using a combination of cash generated
from operating activities and net proceeds from the Global Offering. The
Group may also seek to borrow to satisfy liquidity requirements. As of 31
December 2016, the Group had a cash and cash equivalents of
HK$162.2 million.

As of the date of this report, the Group did not have any bank borrowings
or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any bank loan facilities.

GEARING RATIO
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no net debt. The Group’s
gearing ratio was not applicable as at 31 December 2016.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Company during
the six months ended 31 December 2016. The capital of the Company
comprises ordinary shares and other reserves.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group acquired a medical clinic in Shanghai, namely /&8 EFI%
E AR AR (formerly known as EEREBIRFIZEHERAE) (“UMP
Pudong”), from a third party for a total consideration of RMB8.3 million
(approximately HK$9.5 million) during THFY2017. The completion
thereof has been taken place in THFY2017 and UMP Pudong became an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as at the date of this
report.

20 UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED /2016/2017 INTERIM REPORT

REBEERUMHKEER
AEBBRTFEFBLEETHMERESTFE
EFEE o RRalRDNE BB R LT
REEBRERACEETHMEHES REREEMR
BSREFERREERDESH K - KEEJR
AgESKERRBERDEST K HE
2016 F 12 A31H  AEBEFENRES LIRS
ZEBYWRI22BEBIT -

BEAREAH  AREYEEARITERK
RAERRITER - BX BT ERRITESRR
B o

AN/

EXREBELER

R2016F 12 A31 H » AEBWEFER - B
201612 H31H  AEBMNEREE LRI
@A -

BRI

HZE2016F12 A31 BIENEA#RE - KA A
BEAZBWEE( - AR EANBELBER R
HAab & o

ERRBREEHNBLT

R2017 M BFE L+ F - AEEUABREA
R¥83AEBT(NISABET)IAE=AHK
BLENZM ALEKMEFZHERAR
(RTfE EBRBERFAZHEAERAR) ([ L&
B - ZWBERENR2017MRERE LFF
SR - EEBBERNARE AR AARRHE
E2EWMBLAR -



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWE D

In addition, as disclosed in the Announcement and the Circular, UMP
Healthcare China agreed to subscribe for shares which, together with the
existing shares in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) held by UMP Healthcare
China, representing 70% of the enlarged issued share capital of UMP
Healthcare (Beijing), and NWS Subsidiary also agreed to subscribe for
shares representing 20% of the enlarged issued share capital of UMP
Healthcare China. Furthermore, the Group agreed to dispose of UMP
Management and UMP Management Ill (which own, among other things,
four PRC clinics recently established by the Group) to HAML. Upon
completion of the aforesaid transactions, UMP Healthcare (Beijing) will
become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
UMP Healthcare China will remain as an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, UMP Management and UMP Management
Il will cease to be subsidiaries of the Company. As of the date of this
report, completion of the aforesaid subscriptions and disposals had not
yet been taken place and was subject to certain conditions precedent,
including among others, the approval by the independent shareholders
of the Company.*

Save as aforesaid, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during THFY2017.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from strengthening the Group’s current business and the future
plans as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any specific
future plan for material investments or capital assets as of 31 December
2016.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the period was primarily related to
deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of property, plant and
equipment for the Group’s medical centres. For THFY2017, the Group
incurred capital expenditure in an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$21.0 million (THFY2016: HK$5.6 million).

INDEBTEDNESS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material off-
balance sheet arrangements.

* Completion of the acquisition by HAML and the issue and allotment of new shares by
UMP Healthcare China and UMP Healthcare (Beijing) as described in the
Announcement and the Circular took place on 23 March 2017.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group undertook certain transactions in
foreign currencies, which exposed the Group to foreign currency risk,
primarily relating to the Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars.

The Group did not use any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and
will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange exposure
when the need arises.

Credit Risk

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts
of these instruments.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and concentrations of credit
risk are managed by customer/counterparty.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged certain deposits with
an aggregate carrying amount of HK$0.8 million (30 June 2016: HK$0.8
million) in connection with a surety bond issued by a bank in favour of
an independent third party for potential damages of dental equipment
and a bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a landlord for leasing
of a medical centre of the Group.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 399 (30 June 2016:
392) full-time employees. For the six months ended 31 December 2016,
the staff cost (including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries
and other benefits) was approximately HK$48.1 million (six months
ended 31 December 2015: HK$34.3 million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive
and employees are rewarded on a performance related basis, together
with reference to the profitability of the Group, prevailing remuneration
benchmarks in the industry, and market conditions within the general
framework of the Group’s remuneration system.
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In addition, the Company also adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and a Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible employees are
entitled to subscribe for the ordinary shares in the Company for their past
and potential contribution to the growth of the Group. As at 31
December 2016, 46,400,000 options remained outstanding out of
48,000,000 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Also, as at 31 December 2016, 2,426,000 options granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme remained outstanding. No share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme have been exercised during the six months ended 31 December
2016.

The Company has also adopted the Share Award Scheme to provide an
incentive and reward to selected participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group. No award has been granted under
the Share Award Scheme since its adoption.

The remuneration packages of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according to the
relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and the time
devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results and comparable
market statistics.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

During the reporting period, the Group has made held-to-maturity
investments for corporate treasury purpose. The held-to-maturity
investments are made in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group. The Group receives related interest payments semi-annually and
annually.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s held-to-maturity investments
amounted to HK$60.7 million (30 June 2016: HK$56.7 million), of
which HK$15.0 million is classified as current assets and HK$45.7
million is classified as non-current assets, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold any other significant
investments during THFY2017.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of HKO.5 cent per ordinary
share for the six months ended 31 December 2016.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and transparency. The Company confirms that it has
complied with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the six months
ended 31 December 2016, save for the deviation from code provision
A.2.1 as mentioned below.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the
Chairman of the Board, is also the Chief Executive Officer. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive in an
experienced and qualified person such as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership while allowing
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies. The Board considers that this structure will not impair the
balance of power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Group.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and practices
from time to time and shall make necessary arrangements when the
Board considers appropriate.

THE BOARD

The Board comprises nine Directors, including six executive Directors,
namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong as Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer, Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen as Managing
Director, Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee
Kar Chung, Felix and Mr. Jiang Tianfan; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 88s p, Dr. Li Kwok
Tung, Donald s8s/p and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company confirmed
that the Directors have complied with the Model Code during the six
months ended 31 December 2016, save for the non-compliance incident
as mentioned below.

The Company was informed by Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $BS /P, an
independent non-executive Director, that he purchased 92,000 Shares
on 4 August 2016 (which was a date falling within the black-out period
from 28 July 2016 to 26 September 2016). Dr. Li explained that such
purchase was due to an inadvertent oversight as to the commencement
date of the black-out period. Upon becoming aware of such inadvertent
oversight, Dr. Li immediately sold such Shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. Dr. Li also advised that he has donated the gain of
approximately HK$2,000 to Hong Kong Red Cross. Dr. Li confirmed that
he was not in possession of any inside information of the Company at the
time of such purchase and sale. In response to such incident (albeit
inadvertent in nature) and with a view to ensuring strict compliance with
the Listing Rules and the Model Code going forward, the Company has
reminded all Directors of their respective obligations under the Listing
Rules and the Model Code, including with respect to the restrictions in
dealing in the Company’s securities. In addition, the Company has
provided a refresher course as to the Listing Rules and corporate
governance to Dr. Li.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the Code
of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees on terms that are
no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code. To the best
knowledge of the Company, there was no incident of non-compliance of
the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees during the
six months ended 31 December 2016.

REVIEW OF INTERIM RESULTS

The Audit Committee, which comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS /P (Chairman), Dr. Li
Kwok Tung, Donald $BS /P and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike, has
reviewed, together with the management of the Company, the unaudited
interim results of the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2016
and considered that they were prepared in compliance with the relevant
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the applicable legal
requirements, and that the Company has made appropriate disclosure
thereof.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to be
entered into the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required to be notified
to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code were set out below:

(D The Company

EERFETERAERKRSG - HHE
BRORESHERER AR

R2016F12 A31H  EERARAETETR
ABRARB R EEMBEEZBE (TERLEHF
REAEIEBIE XV ) Z B ~ BRI &%
BEHGRETBERAME) R - HEREESFRBE
EBIEXVEHE 7 RESHEMANE ARNE K&
ERBMIZERZRAR (BRESEEZS
BH R HAEGAIE MR e B 1EHE 2 1
BRKE)  KIBEEF K EEH 352 1%
BRBNAREFEE 2 ER ARz s kA
B HRBZESTRIMANS A QR RE B
RETZRER AR IAT

(NN

Approximate

Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares Notes shareholding
Kt/ 88
Esps #eR/ KR L4 Ro#E W&t BABRLA
(%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 14,300,000 1
REIE8E HE ExfBA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,426,000 1
e EEHAA
Long position Interest held by his 243,756,343 2
HE controlled corporations
EmmARHZERE
260,482,343 35.39
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen  Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 3
BEELL R EREAA
Long position Beneficial owner 19,600,657
R ESHAA
30,980,657 4.21
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Approximate
Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares  Notes shareholding
Kt/ 88
3.5 BE/ KR L3 g ! HeE BARR L
(%)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 4 0.08
BRFERE HE ExfAA
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 5
FNBELE 3} ExBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 11,990,000
R ExEAA
12,590,000 1.71
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 6
FRERLE R ExfEBA
Long position Beneficial owner 900,000
e ExfBA
12,280,000 1.67
Mr. Jiang Tianfan Long position Beneficial owner 4,998,000 0.68
TRRESE HE ExEAA
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBS JP Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 0.03
FHEREWEALE ATHL) PR ExEAA
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald $8S /P Long position Beneficial owner 308,000 0.04
FTERBE(REHNEE K THL) FR EREAA
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike Long position Beneficial owner 294,000 0.04
BRERE R ExEAA
Notes: BisE

(1)

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong is interested in the options granted by the Company
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for 14,300,000 Shares and 2,426,000 Shares respectively.

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong holds the entire issued share capital of East Majestic Group
Limited and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343 Shares
held by East Majestic Group Limited. Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong is also deemed to be
interested in 44,155,000 Shares held by his controlled corporation, namely EM
Team Limited.

Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen is interested in the options granted by the
Company pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
11,380,000 Shares.

Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick is interested in the options granted by the Company
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 600,000 Shares.

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael is interested in the options granted by the Company
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 600,000 Shares.

Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix is interested in the options granted by the Company
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for 11,380,000
Shares.

(1)

()

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

BRI EARRIEE R AREEREBRET
BIRER AR ERBRETERAQ AR
F HY BB AR 4 (5 51 7] 52 88 14,300,000 A% A% {5
12,426,000 &% (n) PHER R ©

TR 1)1 B 4 55 A East Majestic Group Limited
2EEBITRA - AR B East Majestic
Group Limited £ A # 199,601,343 f& i 17
BAEED - RIRTBAEMERAREEGE
EM Team Limited 5 A& #944,155,000 A %
AR BEARER -

BEERTRRIBEE R AR B SR BRET
SR N RE TR B AR (AT 3288 11,380,000
ARAR (D) R A fEw o

B EFAERRIEE R AR E AR
B EA QR T 8 B (773888 600,000 A
Bein) R A o

BXBEERBIEERAFRE SR ERE
B AN B T 80 B AR #E (P] 3288 600,000 AR
&) A fER o

FREERBRIBEE R AR B SR BRET
SR N RE TR B AR (AT 3288 11,380,000
ARAR (D) R A HEw o
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Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the SFO)
Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited®

(1

MR (T RES RAEFAG)
ERBEXERLLBRTOAERARO

Approximate

Number percentage of

Name of Director Long/short position Capacity of shares shareholding
ExgE R KR 3% R E B4 55 BR L 51
(%)

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 625 6.25

BXBEE e BEmEAA

Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited® g D HIRPLOBERAT @
Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of Director Long/short position Capacity of shares shareholding
BEEnA wRE KR &t g 4! BEA9 35 1% EE 51
(%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 95 7.60

BRXBEL e EmBEAA

Notes:

(1) UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare Medical Imaging &
Laboratory Centre Limited.

(2) UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway Bay MRI Centre
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS” INFORMATION

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in

information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to paragraphs

(a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the publication

of the Company’s 2016 Annual Report are set out below:

Name of Director

Mr. Jiang Tianfan

Mr. Lee Luen Wai,
John 8BS JP

Details of Changes

Mr. Jiang resigned as an executive
director and chief financial officer of
CR Phoenix with effect from 25
November 2016. He has also
resigned as a director of Hyde
International Investment Limited on
22 November 2016.

Mr. Lee resigned as an independent
non-executive director of New
World China Land Limited (a listed
company in Hong Kong until its
delisting on 4 August 2016) with
effect from 1 September 2016.

ESEREN

B MBS 1351BMIE - EEERE -
MRAZE13.512) 1§25 (@) £ (e) & (g) B T LA
E R B AR R 20164 F 5 T3 B HI#E A &k

SHRFIT :
EELE

ST RN A

FHERE
(HALHEE
AF#L)

2016/2017 R EFSRE / A

BEFHE

TEERERTEHER
BEENWITESRTS
#MES . §2016F 11 A
5B RAEK e HIR
20164 11 A22 HEH T
Hyde International
Investment Limited &

=Eo

A BBt RS
B E B R A E (HH
EWAR EZE2016
F8H4BKRE)NEL
EMITES - B2016
F9R1BHEAER -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

B RET 8
AARESRBTEB R B - BVE R DRI
BRI B I B R A BB A B AT B -

(A) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme A BRARBENBRESTS
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 18 RARER2015F 8 A 18 HRMAH XA
August 2015 under which the maximum number of Shares to be B RERERESZ - RErE M ARITE
issued upon full exercise of all outstanding share options is FERRHEJER B {T(F % HIEB A&7 2
46,400,000, being approximately 6.30% of the issued share capital R # B IR & 46,400,000 % @ BIARA
of the Company as at 31 December 2016. Al M20165F 12 A31B E B ITRA L
6.30% °
Details of‘the options granted and outstanding under the Pre-IPO RE R AR E s 2)E T
Share Option Scheme are set out as follows: FARITE RSB EH T
Number of Shares issuable under the share options
BREETIFROINRAHA
Cancelled/
Asat Lapsed Asat
Exercise 1July Granted Exercised during 31 December
price 2016 during during the period 2016
Grantee Position Date of grant per Share ~ Exercise period M2016%  theperiod the period Are R20165F
AEA By RHEH SRTEE 68 7A1R HAERY  HMAEGE  EE/4N 12838
(dd/mmyyyy) (HKS)  (dd/mm/yyyy)
(B/R/%) (A7) (B/R/%)
Directors
£
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Chairman, Chief 18/08/2015 12228 18/082016-26/112022 1,430,000 = = - 1430000
Executive Officer and 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 12,870,000 = = - 12,870,000
Executive Director
RRIBE IR TBGHRHTES
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Managing Director and 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 = = = 1,138,000
Jacquen Executive Director 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 10,242,000
PEERL ERRABERINES = = =
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Executive Director 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 = = = 60,000
SRERE BIES 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 = = = 540,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Executive Director 18/08/2015 1.2228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
BuBEL YITES 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 = = = 540,000
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/112022 1,138,000 = = - 1138000
3 ] HiTES 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
Sub-total: 38,260,000 38,260,000
et
Employees
&8
In aggregate = 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 354,000 = = = 354,000
A 18/08/2017-26/112022 3,186,000 = = - 3,186,000
Sub-total: 3,540,000 = - 3,540,000
et _
Other eligible grantees
A ERREA
In aggregate = 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 460,000 = = = 460,000
At 18/08/2017-26/112022 4,140,000 = = - 4140000
Sub-total: 4,600,000 4,600,000
INEE
Total: 46,400,000 46,400,000
3t
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(B)

No share option was granted, exercised, expired, cancelled or
lapsed under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during the six
months ended 31 December 2016.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on 2
November 2015 under which the maximum number of Shares to
be issued upon full exercise of all outstanding share options is
2,426,000 Shares, being approximately 0.33% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

Details of the options granted and outstanding under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

(B)

HZE2016F12A31BIENEAE XA
ISR EARERT S B TEREREE
B 176 EW - FESHERRR -

BXAHRERBRETS
RAFR2015F11 A2 BEHEAE XA
FEEREBRERS - RITE R RITE
B EEERITEEBE T AT 2’5
H B PR A2,426,000 B %15 - BIAA A
MR2016F12A31HBEBEITHRAZLH
0.33%

BRAARBERBREAZRTDRE
R HARITEE < BERBAERF IR0 T

Number of Shares issuable under the share options

BREATTFROTROHE
Cancelled/
lapsed As at
Exercise As at Granted Exercised during 31 December
Date of price  Exercise 1 July 2016 during during the period 2016
Name grant per Share  period R2016 % the period the period BrE R2016 F
#®E RiAH BROKEE THE 7R18 HABRE BrETR Fid V&S 128318
(dd/mmiyyyy) (HK$)  (dd/mmyyyy)
(B/R/%) (Br)  (B/RA/%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong 30/06/2016 127 30/06/2017-29/06/2021 1,213,000 - - - 1,213,000
(Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and 30/06/2018-29/06/2021 1,213,000 1,213,000
Executive Director)
RIBTRE
(XF - THBHk
BI7EE)
Total 2,426,000 2,426,000
CH

No share option was granted, exercised, expired, cancelled or
lapsed under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme during the six
months ended 31 December 2016.

HE2016F12A31BIENEAE XA
M ER BT EE T B R EE
B 17 EW RS RRR -
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June 2016 to
recognise the contributions of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel including Directors and senior management,
employed experts and employees of the Group. Subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board, pursuant to the trust
deed, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of
10 years commencing on the adoption date. The maximum number of
Shares which may be awarded to a selected participant under the Share
Award Scheme shall not exceed one per cent (1%) of the issued share
capital of the Company in each year. The Board shall not make any
further award of the awarded Shares which will result in the nominal
value of the Shares awarded by the Board under the Share Award
Scheme exceeding two per cent (2%) of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time.

As at the date of this interim report, the Company has not granted and
vested any Shares pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to the Directors of the
Company, the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

% 17 2R B =t &l
KABBR20164F 6 A 30 BIERMA D SEE =T
g2 ERLEHIEETEAE(BEESERS
LEBEE AEEXEERKES)EER
Bl o REE G AIALEE T MIE(IRATAR LLFTIR -
RIB(EFERIE - IRH RENFT IR 4N B HikR 5T
TERBEE R AER o BIERD SEBN T8I 7 R
TR FLEENRMDEE LRI SBEAART
EEBBITRAMNESZ—(1%) c EBERE
BEAMSEREZSRIERN ZEERH
BRARANTREERTRABS ZZQ2% Z
IR EERE — S EREIIRD °

WA E19R 4 B - AR FIARIBERS B
BIHE L F B AR -

FERRRAQBRSG K ARRKRD
MmN R

R2016F 12 A31H - BALGESA - U
TAL BR(BERARREEZTRAER
SN AR B 2RO SIABER DR ER -
BEBMENTEZIARMABRBESFRPE
IEBIZEXVEE 2 K3 DEEXARRNRTRNE
BRI FT IR FR - RSN A R RIERIBERE S K
HEKAIE 336 IEFE 2 ZRAMNA

Approximate

Name of substantial Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of

shareholder position Capacity underlying shares  Notes shareholding

FRRRHEA BR/ %R & ket HEROBE W BRI LB

(%)

East Majestic Group Limited Long position Beneficial owner 199,601,343 1 27.12
R BERBAA

EM Team Limited Long position Beneficial owner 44,155,000 1 6.00
R BERBAA

Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il)  Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00

Limited A controlled corporations
b TR AERE
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00

Limited A controlled corporations

b TR AER A
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owned by CR Phoenix. By virtue of the SFO, Unison Champ Limited and CR Phoenix
were deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which
Pinyu Limited was interested.

Approximate
Name of substantial Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
shareholder position Capacity underlying shares ~ Notes shareholding
FERRMEA HR/ KR 54 R4/ HERGEE  WE BRBRLH
(%)
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
3Y) controlled corporations
EamERHEERE
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
BARE(BER)BERAF e controlled corporations
EamERHEERE
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 15.00
BARBEEARRA e controlled corporation
EamERHEERE
Healthcare Ventures Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 2 15.00
e BRBEAA
CR Phoenix Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 3 15.00
ZRRERE e controlled corporations
EamERHEERE
Unison Champ Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 3 15.00
3Y) controlled corporation
EamERHEERE
Pinyu Limited Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 3 15.00
M AR AT e BRBEAA
Notes: Mt
East Majestic Group Limited was wholly owned by Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, an executive 1. East Majestic Group Limited F 7R 12T 8 4 (A2 Bl#
Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Dr. Sun is TEE ERFBTBRER) 2EHEE  MREFSHR
deemed to be interested in its holding of 199,601,343 shares of the Company pursuant BRG] FREEWRREENARF 199,601,343
to the SFO. As Dr. Sun is entitled to exercise one-third or more of the voting power at RGO BB HEE S - AR EBERRNEM
the general meetings of EM Team Limited, Dr. Sun is deemed to be interested in the Team Limited R A& F1TE=9 2 — sk FIRE
shares of the Company held by EM Team Limited pursuant to the SFO. - MIRBES RGO FREERRAREM
Team Limited FT#% AN A RIIR D R HE A #E 2 o
Healthcare Ventures was wholly owned by Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited 2. Healthcare Ventures B ATE (R AR AR ([EXLE
(“CTFE”), which was wholly owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited (“CTFH”"). GtENDEEHEE  MARBEEEHARAREGER)E
CTFH was held as to 78.58% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC”), which was R AF ([CTFH]) 2 & # A © CTFH B Chow Tai Fook
in turn held as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited (“CYTF”) and Capital Limited (CTFC]) #§ 5 78.58%#) X # - i
as to 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings II) Limited (“CYTFII”). By virtue of CTFC% Al 8 Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings)
the SFO, CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFII were deemed to be interested in the Limited ([ CYTFJ) % Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings
same parcel of shares of the Company in which Healthcare Ventures was interested. 1) Limited ([ CYTFII 1) #5575 48.98% [ 46.65% HI A A ©
RIERE 5 R RGS] - AARES - CTFH » CTFC
CYTF J2 CYTFII 4 #% 7% 7 Healthcare Ventures # A 1
BRI —HARRRRO P IEE R -
Pinyu Limited was wholly owned by Unison Champ Limited, which was wholly 3. G # A PR 2 & Unison Champ Limited 2 E# A

ifiUnison Champ Limited i3 BRI R B8R 2 B8 A -
BIEEH R HIE %] - Unison Champ Limited &
EEEBEREARBUERRAEEERNF—
HARRRG P EEER

2016/2017 P Bk / A BB S EAR AR 33



Other Information

Hit & #

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors
have not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared an interim dividend of HKO0.5 cents (the
corresponding period in 2015: nil) per Share for the six months ended 31
December 2016.

The interim dividend will be payable to the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 15 March 2017. It is expected that the interim dividend will
be paid on or about Friday, 7 April 2017.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Book close dates
(both days inclusive)

Monday, 13 March 2017 to
Wednesday, 15 March 2017

4:30 p.m. on Friday,
10 March 2017
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Latest time to lodge transfer
with share registrar
Address of share registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the six months ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, the Directors
confirm that the Company had maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules during the six months ended 31
December 2016.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 23 February 2017

RANRFRE
BRARTMGZ AFARR - LREEFR
M FERAE  EERRBEE2016512 A
31 BIEAE AR AR E #4%5 EHRAIFAE
ZERABHRE -
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BREIEAE
FERITEARH
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

FHESERR

Six months ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A31 BHIENAA

Six months ended 31 December
HE12A3181EXEA

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBERK) (R EZ)
REVENUE WA 250,248 216,473
Other income and gains H YA W 3,109 6,435
Professional services expenses EERKEHR (138,052) (121,139)
Employee benefit expense BT MM (48,050) (34,337)
Property rental and related expenses MRS MBRARX (20,398) (13,001)
Cost of inventories consumed EREFERR (10,328) (8,486)
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe N (8,059) (4,164)
Other expenses, net H s F R (12,221) (26,933)
Share of profits and losses of: DGR & B
Joint ventures A& AR (9,462) (3,298)
Associates /N 762 1,100
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT 38 R 7,549 12,650
Income tax expense FiiSHi &M (4,505) (4,499)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD B R 3,044 8,151
Attributable to: AT M -
Owners of the Company RREERA 2,936 7,496
Non-controlling interests eI T 108 655
3,044 8,151
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AR BREZHEE A
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BEERAR
OF THE COMPANY
Basic BN HK0.399 cents 1l HK1.28 cents Il
Diluted e HK0.399 cents #&fll  HK1.27 cents /&l
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AR S ZEWAR

Six months ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A31 HIE/NAA

Six months ended 31 December
HZE12A3181EXEA

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD FARFE 3,044 8,151
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hth2HEER
Other comprehensive loss to be REZBRERSEEERN
reclassified to profit or loss in Hith 2 HEERE :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of I EBINEBRE S EH
foreign operations (830) (344)
Share of other comprehensive loss of DEEERRHEMEEER
joint ventures (1,216) —
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS MREMEZEES
FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX MERBLIA (2,046) (344)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME MREEBARE
FOR THE PERIOD 998 7,807
Attributable to: ATEHERS
Owners of the Company ZNNEIE 2SN 890 7,226
Non-controlling interests FEPRRSHE £ 108 581
998 7,807
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B #5 AR L 3R

LSS

31 December 2016
201612 A31H

31 December 30 June
2016 2016
2016 F 20164
12A31H 6 H30H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE F#&xT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEX) (re&:%)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &EE 10 45,392 38,416
Goodwill EES 11 41,357 32,755
Other intangible asset HEmErEE 278 333
Investments in joint ventures REERRNRE 12 51,548 23,814
Investments in associates REEE R R E 2,221 2,209
Held-to-maturity investments HEZRIHRE 13 45,719 26,721
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 28,400 9,007
Deferred tax assets BELEFIREE 1,615 1,157
Deposits RES 11,186 16,281
Total non-current assets SEMENE EBRE 227,716 150,693
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 7,368 6,907
Trade receivables E 5 e IE 14 58,816 47,450
Prepayments, deposits and FARRE REE K
other receivables Eoh IR 11,031 9,434
Financial assets at fair value through RARBEFABERZD
profit or loss TREE 2,069 2,026
Held-to-maturity investments REZIKRE 13 15,013 30,007
Due from associates JFE U & N B RUR 3,769 593
Tax recoverable A] U (o] F 78 756 446
Pledged deposits ERER 783 783
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeSEY 157,875 261,299
257,480 358,945
Assets of a disposal group classified DEAFBEGFEZHEHERIM
as held for sale BiE 16 12,274 =
Total current assets MENE B 269,754 358,945
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& BA 4n & B 75 7R R R

31 December 2016
201612 A31H

31 December 30 June
2016 2016
2016 F 20164
12A31H 6 H30H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE F#&xT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEZ) (fe&%)
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B SN FOR 15 48,936 47,291
Other payables, accruals and HMtENRIE - B EAR
deferred income EFEWA 40,106 41,530
Due to a joint venture et & &R EIFHIA 949 -
Due to associates FEfTE & N Bl FRIE 156 266
Tax payable FERT IR 6,573 7,838
96,720 96,925
Liabilities directly associated with WY BAREGEEE
the assets classified as held for sale ERRENEE 16 2,655 =
Total current liabilities MBI AEETE 99,375 96,925
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 170,379 262,020
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBDER
LIABILITIES 398,095 412,713
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFHIBEEE 383 397
Provision B 1,539 1,718
Total non-current liabilities FERENBERE 1,922 2,115
Net assets BEFHE 396,173 410,598
EQUITY L
Equity attributable to owners of RRAREAANEGER
the Company
Issued capital B EITIRA 17 736 736
Reserves G 396,832 411,367
397,568 412,103
Non-controlling interests JEFERR R = (1,395) (1,505)
Total equity MEn R 396,173 410,598
2016/2017 R EASRE / G B = E AR AR 39



Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHGEEaS B KR

Six months ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A31 BHIENAA

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Shares held
for the Share-
Share Capital share hased Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium  contribution award  payment legal fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
RRH HRS
RAE hER
BEfT R i 21 XAH EX%D g% FER 3
B % i Ly R EERE i )| ait 3 ]
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt Fin FiEn FEL TEn FEL TEL TER TER TiEn FiEn FiEn
AT July 2015 (audied) R015%87 A18 (28) = Y] 5 5 ; 585 G (150 66191
Profit for the period AT = S = S S S = 7,496 7,496 655 8,151
Other comprehensive loss for the period: B X 2R :
Exchange differences on translation o~ EESFHMELEE
foreign operations - - - - - - (270) - (270) (74) (344)
Total comprehensive income BhzERAEE
for the period - - - - - - (270) 7,49 7,26 581 7,807
Acquisition of subsiciaries WEHBAR 18 = = = = = = = = = 3,895 3,895
Final 2015 dividend 015RHRE 8 = = - = = = - (30,000 (30,000) - (30,000
Issue of shares R 17 8 = = = = = = = 8 - 8
Capitalisation issue of shares upon listing =& BZ L B{TR (3 17 544 (544) - - - - - - - - -
Issue of shares upon [iting LHgERG 17 184 378856 - - - - - - 379040 - 379040
Share issue expenses ROEARY - (2508) - - - - - - (25,083) - (2508)
Equity-setled share option arangements b} R EEERIER = - = = 2659 = = = 2,659 - 2659
Waiver of amounts due to the then HEENERRIERAAR
ultimate holding company and a major AR -ZEEEERR
beneficial shareholder of the Company 5778 - - 7,404 - - - - - 7404 - 7,404
Transfr to legal reserve BREEERE - - - - - 440 - (440) - = -
At31 December 2015 (unaudited) 2015512831 B(REER) 76 3329 36130 - 2,659 445 (265 16031 408965 2956 41191
At July 2016 (audited) R2016%7 418 (BF%) 736 353,229 36,131 - 7,546 588 (1,195) 15,068 412,103 (1,505) 410,598
Profitfor the period BHE - - - - - - - 2936 2936 108 3,044
Other comprehensive loss for the period: ~ EARE 2T E :
Exchange differences on translation EENRBNEL 28
of foreign operations - - - - - - (830) - (830) - (830)
Share of other comprehensive loss of MEAERRENREEE
joint ventures - - - - - - (1,216) - (1,216) - (1,216)
Total comprehensive income Br2EkALE
for the period - - - - - - (2,046) 2936 890 108 998
Capital contribution by FERERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 2 2
Final 2016 dividend 2016 KBRS 8 - - - - - = - (14676)  (14,676) - (14676)
Equity-settled share option INERERRRERH
arrangements - - - - 3,791 - - - 3791 - 3791
Purchase of shares for the share FROZEHERE DR
award scheme - - - (4,540) - - - - (4,540) - (4,540)
Transfer to legal reserve BEDETRE - - - - - 11 - (241) - - -
At31 December 2016 (unaudited 12016512831 B (kE2H) 736 339 3T @S0 11337 §9¢ Gt 3087 397568 (1395 396,173
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$396,832,000 (30 * ZEREROENEPESEEMEMRARAZEGEERE

June 2016: HK$411,367,000) in the condensed consolidated statement of financial

position.
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRGERERNER

Six months ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F12 A31 BIENEA

Six months ended 31 December

HZ12A831BLEAEA

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
LiEs3 FTERT T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFPHNRERE

ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax RN IR 7,549 12,650
Total non-cash adjustments ﬁﬁiﬁi\ﬁﬂﬁﬁ@ # 16,973 5,856
Total working capital adjustments BE R EEE (11,395) (34,279)
Cash generated from/(used in) éi‘:fé'%%i%EE/ (FrA)

operations HWIRE 13,127 (15,773)
Interest received SR & RSN 458 34
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREENEH (5,862) (6,624)
Overseas taxes paid EAENRIE (633) (78)
Net cash flows from/(used in) ReEEEESE (ER)

operating activities NREREFHE 7,090 (22,441)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHHNERERE

ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries L R BT/ 18 (9,378) 504
Purchases of items of property, BEYE - J’r‘ﬁbéa-& S 1E B

plant and equipment (20,749) (1,783)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREERH

held-to-maturity investments WEFRSHIA 68,713 -
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments & B 154 % 5| Hj 1% & (72,848) =
Purchases of available-for-sale BEIHEERE

investments (19,403) -
Decrease in non-pledged deposits with ~ REVSEREIHIH &

original maturity of more than three B =18 H <z S|EM

months when acquired EHFRUR L 50,000 -
Investment in a joint venture R—HE&aERANKRE (1,116) =
Increase in amounts due from e & & A El®EEE N

joint ventures (37,326) -
Increase in amount due to a joint venture JE{S—fE4& &R F)E2E M 949 -
Other investing activities HtR&E RS 4,847 2,107
Net cash flows from/(used in) REZBHEE (FRB

investing activities REREFHR (36,311) 828
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRGERERER

Six months ended 31 December 2016
H=2016F12 A31 HIEREA

Six months ended 31 December

HZ12A31B1EAEA

2016 2015
2016 ¥ 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FET FET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBEX) (REgER)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEZDNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BERMDHFEBRIA 17 = 379,048
Share issue expenses A An BT X - (25,083)
Purchase of shares for the share award A% {7 22 Eh =120 B &9 A% (7
scheme (4,540) =
Advances from related companies BN B - 185,337
Repayment to related companies BIREAN A A 5KIE = (214,100)
Repayment to a director BE-—REEFTE - (6,769)
Capital contribution by non-controlling ~ FEIZR#ERS X &
interests 2 =
Dividend paid EfIRE (14,676) (30,000)
Net cash flows from/(used in) MEZTBHEE (FRW
financing activities ReREBFHE (19,214) 288,433
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH  BR&RBELZEYIEM, (D)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (48,435) 266,820
Effect of foreign exchange rate SNEERSE) 2 8 (FFH)
changes, net (635) (266)
Cash and cash equivalents at MR e RBeEED
beginning of period 211,299 83,477
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HMRESRESEZEY
AT END OF PERIOD 162,229 350,031
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESEYERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B& MIBITFER 157,875 150,031
Non-pledged deposits with original REUSEREIER BT
maturity of less than three months =8 A 2 EERTE HFER
when acquired - 200,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in  fEBR4&RA B BARRRATIEZ
the condensed consolidated statement RNENREEEBY
of financial position 157,875 350,031
Cash and short term deposits attributable %8 &#1E45 & H & 4B R fE(S
to a disposal group classified as held R& REHFR
for sale 4,354 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the B4R AR ERERAFIFZ
condensed consolidated statement BeMIREEEY
of cash flows 162,229 350,031
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

S BA %R & P 5 B 3% ER R Y 5

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Room 1404-1408, 14/F.,
Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

J corporate healthcare solution services;

o medical and dental services;

. medical imaging and laboratory services; and
e other auxiliary medical services.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 27 November 2015 (the “Listing”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 31 December
2016 have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and certain available-for-sale investments which have been
measured at fair value. Assets of a disposal group held for sale are
stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. These unaudited condensed consolidated interim
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

These unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements do not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2016.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

S BA %R & P H B A dR R Y 5

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

44

DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2016 are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2016, except for the adoption of the following new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which are effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1
July 20176.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27
(2011) Financial Statements

Equity Method in Separate

Amendments to a number
of HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
amendments to HKAS 1 and certain amendments included in the
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle, the adoption
of the above new and revised standards has had no significant
financial effect on these unaudited condensed consolidated interim
financial statements.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

S BA %R & P 5 B 3% ER R Y 5

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements
in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements. The amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in the statement of profit or loss
and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(iii)  that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a
single line item, and classified between those items that
will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that
apply when additional subtotals are presented in the
statement of financial position and the statement of profit or
loss. The amendments have had no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

S BA %R & P H B A dR R Y 5

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

46

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle issued in
October 2014 sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
Details of the amendments are as follows:

J HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes to a
plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather
it is a continuation of the original plan. Accordingly,
there is no change in the application of the
requirements in HKFRS 5. The amendments also clarify
that changing the disposal method does not change the
date of classification of the non-current assets or
disposal group held for sale. The amendments are
applied prospectively. The amendments have had no
impact on the Group as the Group did not have any
change in the plan of sale or disposal method in respect
of the disposal group held for sale during the period.

The significant accounting policy, which is relevant to these
unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2016 but not
listed in the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2016, is described below.

Disposal groups held for sale

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for
the sale of such disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Disposal groups (other than financial assets) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as
held for sale are not depreciated.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

S BA %R & P 5 B 3% ER R Y 5

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 3.2 B HEHEMAEMNE BT

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not early applied any new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the six months ended
31 December 2016, in these unaudited condensed consolidated
interim financial statements.

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
in August 2016 that address three main areas: the effects of vesting
conditions on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a certain
amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where a
modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment
transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach used to account
for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based
payments also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The
amendments introduce an exception so that a share-based payment
transaction with net share settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is
classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-
settled share-based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 July 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
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3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

48

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”), bringing together all phases of
the financial instruments project to replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 July
2018. The Group performed a high-level assessment of the impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based
on currently available information and may be subject to changes
arising from further detailed analyses or additional reasonable and
supportable information being made available to the Group in the
future. The expected impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9
are summarised as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will
have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets. It expects to continue
measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value. Equity investments currently held as available for
sale will be measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the investments are intended to be
held for the foreseeable future and the Group expects to
apply the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments cannot be
recycled to profit or loss when the investments are
derecognised.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
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3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 3.2 B HEHEMAEMNE BT

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) Impairment
HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments
recorded at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts that are not accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model either on a
twelve-month basis or a lifetime basis. The Group expects to
apply the simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present value of all
cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade and
other receivables (add any other debt instruments as
applicable). The Group will perform a more detailed analysis
which considers all reasonable and supportable information,
including forward-looking elements, for estimation of
expected credit losses on its trade and other receivables (add
any other debt instruments as applicable) upon the adoption
of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”)
establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is
recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance obligations,
application guidance on principal versus agent and licences of
intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 on
1 July 2018 may have a significant impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group’s financial statements. The
Group is performing a detailed assessment of the impact of HKFRS
15 upon adoption and it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the detailed assessment is
performed by the Group.
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3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

50

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”) replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS
17”), HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will
recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use
asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use
asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease
liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all
leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 July 2019. The total
operating lease commitments of the Group as a lessee in respect of
its office properties, medical centres and office equipment with
terms more than 12 months as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
HK$36,291,000 (30 June 2016: HK$62,890,000). The Group
expects that certain portion of these operating lease commitments
will be required to be recognised as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities upon adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group will perform a
more detailed analysis upon the adoption of HKFRS 16.
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3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 3.2 B HEHEMAEMNE BT

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows require an entity
to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure to be
provided in the financial statements. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 July 2017. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes were issued with the
purpose of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at fair value,
although they also have a broader application for other situations.
The amendments clarify that an entity, when assessing whether
taxable profits will be available against which it can utilise a
deductible temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax
law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on
how an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain
the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery
of some assets for more than their carrying amount. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments from 1 July 2017. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

HER (®)
EAGHENE/RE HEXR B3]
EREEEHHE  UWEHKRRER
EREREEHEANARE
BiEReRELFREREELENE
B o RSB HERERMBERERIEL
HINER - AEBBEHE2017F7 81
HRRANZZBEE - ZZ B EHETE
HAREENPBRREN T AEATE -

AT BT ERNE 12K 2 ER]
AR EZEAREMER  BEBEME
MR EA R BEFENEB TR
HENARBEREEERELCRBEE
ZEEFEBFERNTHREAERMK
A A BER AR E RS =R - B
BERBRAO RS HRAIRE R =
598 [0] iy A] 4 1 40 O JB AR A0 )4 1 O 2K
RBMRRS - BN ZFETHERE
anfal B E R R R B AR AR ) - I
R IR TUE A AT B R U B HE B BR B
MEDBENBR - ARBEEHH2017
F7 A1 BRERAZFER] - ZFETRE
HTeHAKENM BRI EKEMNE
N2
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has two reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@@ Corporate healthcare solution services (“Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers”)
segment engages in the provision of corporate healthcare
solutions to contract customers; and

(b)  Clinical healthcare services (“Clinical Healthcare Services”)
segment engages in the provision of medical and dental
services, health check-up and other auxiliary services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss,
which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted
profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that interest income, other income and
gains, and share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude goodwill, other intangible asset,
investments in joint ventures and associates, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale investments and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. K& HIFER ()

(@ Revenue and results (@ WAKRZEE
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
BENEF
RS HE
BRRBIER fRIREE &
I RIRS RIS a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Six months ended BZE2016F12A31 81k
31 December 2016 (unaudited) NME B (REBEZ)
Segment revenue: DEBBIA -
External sales HNER S E 152,248 98,000 250,248
Intersegment sales DEHEHE 537 35,596 36,133
152,785 133,596 286,381
Reconciliation: SR -
Elimination of intersegment sales 7 ER S E 8 (36,133)
Revenue A 250,248
Segment results D EEE 17,843 2,936 20,779
Reconciliation: SEED
Interest income 2 A 1,397
Other income and gains H A R e 1,712
Share of profits and losses of: DIENERERE
Joint ventures BERNA (9,462)
Associates it NE]| 762
Corporate and other RAE| R EAMAR DB
unallocated expenses (7,639)
Profit before tax Br B A1 4 A 7,549
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. #&& 5 ﬁlgﬁ*#(i;)
Revenue and results (Continued) (a) LONES
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
BEFOESS
T)—E{ \.ﬂi%
BIREEARR BRIRE
LE Y TRAE AR5 Baf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET THET
Six months ended HZE2015F12A31HLE
31 December 2015 (unaudited) AMEA CGRRER)
Segment revenue: 2EUA
External sales HNER 4 & 142,302 74,171 216,473
Intersegment sales D EbFEHE 440 35,095 35,535
142,742 109,266 252,008
Reconciliation: AL -
Elimination of intersegment sales 7 BB HE H 3H (35,535)
Revenue WA 216,473
Segment results DERE 15,138 15,831 30,969
Reconciliation: 2EED
Interest income MEWA 34
Other income and gains H A RS 6,401
Share of profits and losses of: DIENERERE
Joint ventures NN (3,298)
Associates kNG 1,100
Corporate and other RAEREAMARDERX
unallocated expenses (22,556)
Profit before tax bR B A 12,650
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.

(b)

KeEFHER (@)

Assets and liabilities b EBEERAEE
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
AEHNEF
REHOCEERE
REEFRR Him PR B8 AR
7R RERTE &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 31 December 2016 R2016F 12831 H
(unaudited) (REEZR)
Segment assets DEEE 169,005 109,071 278,076
Reconciliation: GEER -
Elimination of intersegment 53 5] J& U TR IE K 85
receivables (41,590)
Corporate and other NAEIREMARD LB E
unallocated assets 260,984
Total assets BEE 497,470
Segment liabilities SEEE 70,085 65,380 135,465
Reconciliation: FHED
Elimination of intersegment %> & & ZIB I 35
payables (41,590)
Corporate and other RENEMRDERE
unallocated liabilities 7,422
Total liabilities BAaE 101,297
As at 30 June 2016 (audited) 742016 6 A 30 H
(RER)
Segment assets PEEE 146,660 77,674 224,334
Reconciliation: D -
Elimination of intersegment %3 B & FE U FRIE K 85
receivables (33,499)
Corporate and other NRARHMARD LA E
unallocated assets 318,803
Total assets BEE 509,638
Segment liabilities SEEE 71,140 59,142 130,282
Reconciliation: GEER -
Elimination of intersegment 53 B & & (< OB K 85
payables (33,499)
Corporate and other RNEAIREMARDEBE
unallocated liabilities 2,257
Total liabilities FEN=R 99,040
2016/2017 R EASRE / G B = E AR AR
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

56

(o

(d

Geographical information

During the six months ended 31 December 2016, the Group
operates within three geographical locations, Hong Kong,
Macau and Mainland China. Approximately 88% (six months
ended 31 December 2015: 92%) of the Group’s revenue was
generated in Hong Kong and approximately 87% (six months
ended 31 December 2015: 88%) of the Group’s non-current
assets and capital expenditure were located/incurred in Hong
Kong. Less than 10% of the Group’s revenue was generated
in Macau or Mainland China and less than 10% of the
Group’s non-current assets and capital expenditure were
located/incurred in Macau or Mainland China. Accordingly,
no geographical information in respect of revenue from
external customers and locations of non-current assets is
presented.

Information about major customers

Revenue from two major customers which accounted for
10% or more of the Group’s revenue from the Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers segment
is set out below:

4.

KeEFHER (@)

(9]

(d)

ih 32 & R

RE ZE2016%12 A318 1k X A
A AEERES - BFIRFBEKR
P = EHbIB A B - AEBE
#4788% (# £2015412 A31 8 1k
NMEA 92%)REBEBURARE
EIERBEENRERNHZL87%
(H=Z=2015F12 A31BHIE/NEA -
88%) N BERRBEBEE - &
EE D 10% B ISR B R P AP
B K B I AR R B DA 10% K FE TR ED
BENEERSAR, /3R IRM
s B KRE - Hit - EZ25)
REINARP 2 W= RIERBEE
FRfEH RO IR & R} o

FEEFFER
REMEBEEERP(EAEEKA
MEHNRPIREMEEBEREMR
FRRIE D EHUAR 10% A E
MEF) R AHTIT

Six months ended 31 December

BZE12A831BIEAEA

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FH&T

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEX) (RETEZ)

Customer A ZEFEA 30,084 27,380
Customer B =FB 18,401 13,388
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
Revenue represents the aggregate of the gross amounts received and
receivable from third parties for the provision of corporate healthcare
solution services and clinical healthcare services during the period.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA - AR W5

WAEBAREHRERERRERRS
F AR 75 K i PR B8 B R 2 AR 75 T B U Bk R

WEE =TT RIBZ 4858 -

WA~ BRA R RS 2 DT

Six months ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEXEA
2016 2015
2016 2015 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Revenue ON
Provision of corporate healthcare solution W& #FFIREDEEERE
services to contract customers: fRR T RS ¢
Medical services BIER 144,941 134,516
Dental services FERS 7,307 7,786
Provision of clinical healthcare services: IR R IR B EREEARTS
Medical services BERY 71,418 51,960
Dental services T RURTS 26,582 22,211
250,248 216,473
Six months ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEXEAR
2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHT
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER)
Other income and gains HAs g A & W
Administrative support fees THXHER 275 1,596
Bank interest income HITHBWA 458 34
Interest income on held-to-maturity FAZIEREN WA
investments 739 =
Interest income on available-for-sale A EERER S WA
investments 200 -
Dividend income from financial assets BARBEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEREWKA 61 70
Fair value gains on financial assets BRARBEFABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREEQTBEERS 43 -
Gain on bargain purchase (note 18 (b)) HE W (M2 18(b) - 3,499
Others HAth 1,333 1,236
3,109 6,435

2016/2017 F EsReE / A S S EAR AR
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

6. FRBLAER

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): NEBBRFANEF DB, GEA) T

JIBIRESD -

Six months ended 31 December
HBZE12831H1EAEA

2016 2015
2016 F 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&T

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)

Equity-settled share option expense

A 4 E 2 R X

(including employees and professional (BEEEREHERM)

consultants) 3,791 2,659
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets R AR EBEFABRZEMEE

at fair value through profit or loss MAREBEER (W) 43) 482
Foreign exchange differences, net VE W =555 342 311
Listing expenses FRX - 15,104

7. INCOME TAX 7. FREH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (six BEMNSRORHAEEBELNMGE
months ended 31 December 2015: 16.5%) on the estimated JERT AR 16.5% (B 22015512 A
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on 31THIEREAR - 16.5%) BB X TR &
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax o HAinE ERB A B IRR A E
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group BEXBRLENERBEERNHRT

operates.

B -

Six months ended 31 December

BZE12831BIEAEA

2016 2015
2016 20154
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Current — Hong Kong BIHR — &8
Charge for the period HAXH 4,732 3,809
Underprovision/(overprovision) BEFERETR
in prior periods (EBRE ) (120) 71
Current — Elsewhere BUER — E i [
Charge for the period HAZ 426 350
Withholding tax R - 1
Overprovision in prior periods BAEFEEBERE (44) (274)
Deferred T (489) 542
Total tax charge for the period HAR T IR 5 S 48 58 4,505 4,499
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8.

DIVIDENDS 8. RE
Six months ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALAEA
2016 2015
2016 5 20154
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEEZ)
Dividend recognised as distribution HANERRD KRS -
during the period:
Final dividend for the year ended BE20165F6 A30HILFE
30 June 2016: ZREBRE
HK2.0 cents (year ended 30 June 2015: SR BA% 2.0 781
HK$30,000,000) per ordinary share (BZE2015%6 A30BLEFE :
30,000,000 7T) 14,676 30,000
Dividend proposed after the end of BERRERRRS -
the reporting period:
Interim dividend for the six months ended EHZE2016F 12 A31HIEAEA
31 December 2016: ZHHERR S
HKO.5 cent (six months ended R E @A 0.5 &L
31 December 2015: Nil) (BZ=2015F12A31H
per ordinary share EAREA - E) 3,680 =

The proposed interim dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share in
respect of the six months ended 31 December 2016 was approved
by the Board on 23 February 2017.

The final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of
the year ended 30 June 2016 was approved by the Company’s
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 10 November
2016.

Prior to the Listing, a final dividend of HK$30,000,000 in respect of
the year ended 30 June 2015 was approved by the shareholders of
the Company on 2 November 2015.

BEEZE2016F12A31BIENEA 2
BERFHKEE SR EBERSBIR
20172 A23 BEEESHE -

EBEEZ2016F6 A30B IEFE 2 RH
A% B FAL T @A 2.0/8 LR 2016 11 A
10 A RITZREAFAE EEARAQRRK
Rt -

R ERR BEBEHE 201596 A308H 1k

FZ 7 REAM S30,000,000 78 7TFY 2015
F11 82 BERARIMERAE -
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10.

11.

60

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the unaudited consolidated profit for the six months ended 31
December 2016 attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$2,936,000 (six months ended 31 December 2015:
HK$7,496,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 736,000,000 (six months ended 31 December 2015:
587,000,000) in issue during the period, on the assumption that the
capitalisation issue, as further explained in note 17 below, had
been completed on 1 July 2015.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the six months ended 31 December 2016 in
respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding
had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amount
presented. The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount
for the six months ended 31 December 2015 was based on the
unaudited consolidated profit for that period attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$7,496,000 and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 587,000,000 in
issue during that period, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,956,780 assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise of all share options during that period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the six months ended 31 December 2016, additions of
property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$20,984,000 (six
months ended 31 December 2015: HK$5,577,000).

9.

10.

AAREBEDBEARGE
R &R

ERERBHSBEIENRAR AL @E
HEAEAHZE2016F12 831 HIE/AE
B (G RS EZ AR A 772,936,000 70
(& =2015F12A318 1E X @ A
7,496,00078 7T ) R BRI B 817 & @ AN
TESE YR8 736,000,000 A% (B = 2015 F
12 831 B1EXMEA : 587,000,000 %) 5t
H o WEREENEET(R T X7
HE—HRE)BEN2015F7 A1 B%EKX °

ARARITE 2 BREHAMES 2 BRE
KEHNCHEARMELE  HUERE
Z2016F 12 A31HIEANEAMZEFR
EREANRFSHELEEAE - T8
HZE2015F12 A31HILAAEA 2 &K
BERFSENERAR R L BESE
BEARGEBHENRECEZEE &R
7,496,000 7T + KAERTEERELRE
Fl 2 BRI R B 21T AR hn e 39 AR &
/4 587,000,000 % LA K2 1B 5% 1A B 78 HA ]
TR BRERREI TR B |EET
F BRI IR EUR 1,956,780 IR HE
1T °

REZE 201612 A31 B IE/NE B HIRS -
NEYE - B k& MHEEE 420,984,000
BT (HZE2015F12 A318BIEN@EA
5,577,000 7T) °

GOODWILL 1. BE
31 December 30 June
2016 2016
2016 ¥ 2016
12A31H 6 H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (E2)
At beginning of period/year RE/ &) 32,755 28,086
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business (note 18) WM E A &), 275 (HIzE18) 8,602 4,669
At end of period/year REF R 41,357 32,755
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12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

12. REERANKRE

31 December 30 June

2016 2016

2016 £ 20164

12A31H 6 A30H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBEZ) (&%)
Share of net assets/(net liabilities) DB EE/(FAE) 9,364 (10,196)
Due from joint ventures EW & B R EIFIA 42,184 34,010
51,548 23,814

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the
directors, these amounts are considered as part of the Group’s net

investments in the joint ventures.

During the six months ended 31 December 2016 and the year
ended 30 June 2016, the Group had the following material
transactions in connection with its investments in joint ventures:

On 13 July 2015, the Group entered into a joint venture
agreement with CR Phoenix Subsidiary to establish UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) on 50-50 basis and set up medical
centres in the Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei regions, the PRC.
Under the terms of the joint venture agreement, each party
will advance interest-free shareholder’s loan in an aggregate
sum of no less than RMB50 million (equivalent to HK$58
million) to UMP Healthcare (Beijing) in stages. CR Phoenix
Subsidiary is an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of CR
Phoenix which is a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and owned 15% (30 June 2016: 15%) equity
interest in the Company as at 31 December 2016.

During the six months ended 31 December 2016, the
Group’s loan to UMP Healthcare (Beijing) in the amount of
RMB24.25 million (approximately HK$29.1 million) was
capitalised as investment in UMP Healthcare (Beijing).

ERESERFREREER 2808
EEEEHRR EFRR - BEFER
BRAKEERERRIFREN—FD -

REZE2016F 12 A31 B IE/N8 A &
Z2016F 6 A30B L FEHM - AEH
BEUTHENRSGEQRKREERZE
AR5

(@) F2015F7H138 @ KRB EE
HEEEENB AR AE AR
g BEE —FREERHAE
BEER)  TRFBERIER - XER
A b S B RS R L o IRIBFZA
=WNGIN A S IR OpR =)
FEER A A B % (b ) B R B AR
RERAHATLORARES OEE
TL(HEERS8EEB L) - EHE
BEENB AR AZEHEEEE
(REABBIFEMHRR KB
2016512 31 BHEA KRR T 15%
f&#E (20166 A30H : 15%)) K
ME2ENBAR -

(b) FE E2016F12H31H £/~ @
A AEEMBEERJLR)RE
MAR2425B 8 L(429.18
EETLINERENARBAE
% UER) KR E -
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12.

62

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(©

On 28 July 2016, the Group entered into another joint venture
agreement with independent third parties to subscribe for 50%
equity interest in Shanghai He Dun for a consideration of RMB1
million (approximately HK$1.1 million). Shanghai He Dun is
primarily engaged in the provision of dental services in
Shanghai, the PRC.

On 15 December 2016, UMP Healthcare (Beijing) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with HAML, a company
owned as to 50% by Healthcare Ventures, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited and
owned 15% equity interest in the Company, and as to 50%
by NWS Subsidiary, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
NWS, to dispose of UMP Healthcare (Beijing)’s entire 100%
equity interest in UMP Management and to assign the
shareholder’s loan to UMP Healthcare (Beijing) for a
consideration, subject to adjustments, in the sum of RMB78.6
million and HK$4.1 million (approximately HK$92.2 million,
in aggregate) (the “UMP Management Disposal”). The
completion of the UMP Management Disposal is subject to
certain conditions precedent, including among others, the
approval by the independent shareholders of the Company.

On 15 December 2016, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement with UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
whereby the Group will subscribe for 6,668 ordinary shares
in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) for a consideration of RMB32.3
million (approximately HK$36.2 million) (the “UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription”). The completion of the
UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription is subject to certain
conditions precedent, including among others, the approval
by the independent shareholders of the Company. The
directors of the Company expect the UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Subscription to be completed before 30 June 2017.
Immediately after the UMP Healthcare (Beijing) Subscription,
the Group’s equity interest in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) will
be increased from 50% to 70% and UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
and its subsidiaries will become non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group.
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13.

14.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 13. BEZIHRE
31 December 30 June
2016 2016
2016 2016 4F
12A31H 6 H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBERZ) (&%)
Debt investments, at amortised cost BEIFRE - REHRAGE 60,732 56,728

Analysed into: DHTIE -

Non-current portion JEBNERER > 45,719 26,721
Current portion BNEAER 53 15,013 30,007
60,732 56,728

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s held-to-maturity investments
represented debt investments with fixed maturity dates between
2017 and 2022 and fixed interest rates ranging from 1.3% to 4.9%
per annum (30 June 2016: 1.0% to 4.9% per annum).

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its contract customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally one month, extending up
to three months for major customers. Each contract customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to monitor and minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

14.

2016/2017 F EsReE / A S S EAR AR

HE2016F12A318 AE@FEEE
BIER AR E E B HAR 2017 £ 2022
FrHMNEBRE EEFMNENT
1.3%%E4.9% (2016 F 6 A30H : FF|=X
NF1.0%ZE4.9%) °

B 5 BWRIE
AEERASOEPZEZIRREZN
FEATNET - GEH-—KR/1EA -
HIEBERFPAILEREIEA - BEAH
EPHREESERRE - ARENK
R EIE B WA B BB ES - IR
BREEZGIEM - AEREERR - I
HEREZRE BREHARRERE
EHEHN AEEYERZFEZRK
REBERFACTAERRREBEEER
A o BHRYGRBTE R -
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 14. EZEIRAKEE)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the REREHIREE 5 WG IEIR 3 Z A 5
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BRI T -
31 December 30 June
2016 2016
2016 £ 20164
12831H 6 H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT FETT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (FeFE%)
Within 1 month 1&8 A8 A 43,759 34,705
1 to 2 months 1Z22M@A 9,809 6,073
2 to 3 months 2E31EA 4,707 2,646
Over 3 months 31E B LA E 706 4,026
58,981 47,450
Less: Trade receivables of a disposal group & : DB ARFIEFE 2 HEAR
classified as held for sale (note 16) K E 5 e FIE (BHsE16) (165) —
58,816 47,450
15. TRADE PAYABLES 15. EZENRIE
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting REEERNE FENKIEIREZ A H
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HBRE S IT T -
31 December 30 June
2016 2016
2016 2016 4F
12A31H 6 H30H
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe&:%)
Within 1 month 118 AR 22,335 17,887
1 to 3 months 1Z231EA 26,453 28,381
Over 3 months 3EAE 191 1,023
48,979 47,291
Less: Trade payables of a disposal group B DEABERE ZLEAR
classified as held for sale (note 16) HE S EMNFIE (it 16) 43) =
48,936 47,291
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BoEMNZIEAEE R —MN30KE
settled on terms of ranging from 30 to 90 days. KNEEE o
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16. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

On 15 December 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with HAML to dispose of the Group’s entire
100% equity interest in UMP Management Il and to assign the
shareholder’s loan thereof to the Group for a consideration, subject
to adjustments, in the sum of RMB21.9 million and HK$4.6 million
(approximately HK$29.1 million, in aggregate) (the “UMP
Management Il Disposal”). UMP Management I and its subsidiary
(collectively, the “UMP Management Il Group”) are primarily
engaged in the provision of medical services. The business of the
UMP Management Il Group was included in the Clinical
Healthcare Services segment.

The completion of the UMP Management Ill Disposal is subject to
certain conditions precedent, including among others, the approval
by the independent shareholders of the Company. The directors of
the Company expect the UMP Management IIl Disposal to be
completed before 30 June 2017. Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of the UMP Management Il Group as at 31 December
2016 were classified as a disposal group held for sale.

16.

FEFEZHEAR
B2016F12 150 AEFHERE

EE@JiEE% ’ﬁ%$%@m%
EBRBEEE=MN2BREREEXT

AEBIKREER  RE(IFAE) A
ARE2I9BETR46BEEET(AHL
#9201 BEBT)((HEABBHEEE =L
EEH]) HEBKEEREE=ZNEWE
RNE( G [BMABKEEFE S8

ERERHEERE BHEBEEEES
“EENERTARRBERERED

#B

ﬁﬁé%ﬁ’z”éﬁ’**ﬂjﬁ$152nmzx¢u
BTRFEHENER  EFBERAF
BRI E - AAREFEY  BA
ﬁ%ai@“‘ﬁ'%%ﬂﬂ%zowim
30BR1TEA - At - MEBKEES
%%2016@12)?315215\?&@\1\
Do BEAREFEZHEHER -

17. SHARE CAPITAL 17. A
31 December 30 June
2016 2016
2016 F 2016
12H31H 68308
HK$/000 HK$'000
T FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEZ) (F&FE%z)
Authorised: JETE
5,000,000,000 (30 June 2016: 5,000,000,000 % (2016
5,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 6 H30H : 5,000,000,000 i%)
HK$0.001 (30 June 2016: HK$0.001) FRXTEE 0.001 57T (2016 £
each 68308 :0.001%E7T)8
=g il 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITMER
736,000,000 (30 June 2016: 736,000,000) 736,000,000 i% (2016 £
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 6 A30H : 736,000,000 %)
(30 June 2016: HK$0.001) each FIRMEE0.001 7T (2016 4F
6 A30H :0.00187T)H
TEAR 736 736
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 17. BA& )
The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share 7201567 A1RZE2016%12 431 BH
capital during the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 B ANRREEE R EBTRAZE I
are as follows: I
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
ordinary shares shares
ZEREE ZEREE
Notes HK$’000
B 2E TET
Authorised: ETE
At 1 July 2015 R2015%7 818 5,000,000 388
Increase of 50,000 ordinary shares #9150,000 B 7.80 78 7T
of HK$7.80 each ZEmk (b) 50,000 390
Cancellation of authorised but EHEER0.01 ETTZETE
unissued shares of US$0.01 each BREEITHRG (e) (5,000,000) (388)
Sub-division of 50,000 ordinary %7 50,000 %
shares of HK$7.80 each into BR7808BL2EBRA
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BAR0.01 BT ERK (f) 38,950,000 -
Sub-division of 39,000,000 ordinary %% 39,000,000 %
shares of HK$0.01 each into BROO BTz EBRA
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FA%0.001 BIT 2 EiBAR ® 351,000,000 -
Increase of 4,610,000,000 ordinary 3 14,610,000,000 %
shares of HK$0.001 each &Hh%0.001 B2
TR (®) 4,610,000,000 4,610
At 31 December 2015, 2015612 /318
at 30 June 2016, at 1 July 2016 2016%F6 A308 -
and at 31 December 2016 201657 A1H
2016512 A31H 5,000,000,000 5,000
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

17. BA (&)

Nominal value

Number of of ordinary
ordinary shares shares
EERHAE EEREE
Notes HK$’000
i THET
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
At 1 July 2015 R2015F7H1H 1 =
Issuance of 99,999 ordinary shares 2%£1799,999 &
of US$0.01 each B0.01 XL EBK @) S0 8
Share repurchase & fn B (© (100,000 (8)
Issuance of 1,000 ordinary shares 171,000 I F 1% 7.80 87T
of HK$7.80 each 2 TR (d) 1,000 3
Sub-division of 1,000 issued 247 1,000 &R 7.8078 T
ordinary shares of HK$7.80 ZEBETEBRA
each into ordinary shares FR0.01 BTz L@k
of HK$0.01 each (f) 779,000 -
Sub-division of 780,000 issued 247 780,000 B & 0.01 /87T
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 ZBEETEBRRA
each into ordinary shares % 0.001 BT Bk
of HK$0.001 each (@ 7,020,000 -
Capitalisation issue BT (h) 544,200,000 544
Issuance under initial public offering  RIEE X AFEEETT (i) 184,000,000 184
At 31 December 2015, M2015%F12 8310 -
at 30 June 2016, at 1 July 2016 2016F 6 A30H -
and at 31 December 2016 201657 HA1H
201612 A31H 736,000,000 736
(a) On 8 July 2015, the Company allotted and issued 99,999 ordinary shares of (a) 201567 A8H » ANQ A E B2 &%
US$0.01 each at par to the then ultimate holding company of the Company. 7799,999 B 0.01 ETLEBR FARAE
B R AR AF] ©
(b) On 25 August 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company was (b) R2015F8 A25 8 * ARBEERAFEBIL
increased by HK$390,000 by the creation of 50,000 additional ordinary shares HNEE 9N 50,000 A% = A% 7.80 78 7T & 3@ AL (R FT
of HK$7.80 each, ranking pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of BHREERRRBERNZERSHER) S
the Company. 33 H1390,000 7T
() On 25 August 2015, the Company repurchased 100,000 ordinary shares of (©) 20158 A25 8 * ARG MAR A& B
US$0.01 each at par from the then shareholders of the Company (which was WIREE B [ 100,000 B E A% 0.01 =T L@
paid out from the proceeds of the issue of 1,000 ordinary shares of HK$7.80 f& + B BA TR 3 (d) BT ati 297 1,000 A & % 7.80
each referred to in (d) below). BT BRATISRIELZ A -
(d) On 25 August 2015, the Company allotted and issued 1,000 ordinary shares of (d) R2015F 8 A25 8 » AR BIRE AR K3

HK$7.80 each at par to the then shareholders of the Company.

171,000k T 7.80B T EBRTFALNAE
BEARER o

2016/2017 F EsReE / A S S EAR AR 67



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

S BA %R & P H B A dR R Y 5

17. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

18.

68

(e)

On 25 August 2015, the authorised but unissued share capital of the Company
of 5,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each was cancelled.

On 25 August 2015, each issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$7.80 was
sub-divided into 780 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each such that the authorised
share capital of the Company was HK$390,000 divided into 39,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed
on 2 November 2015, (i) every ordinary share of HK$0.01 in the capital of the
Company was sub-divided into 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each such that
the authorised share capital of the Company was HK$390,000 divided into
390,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each; and (ii) the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased to HK$5,000,000 by the creation of
4,610,000,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each, ranking pari

passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders of the Company passed
on 13 November 2015, 544,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each were
allotted and issued, credited as fully paid at par, by way of capitalisation from
the share premium account to the then shareholders on a pro-rata basis. This
allotment and capitalisation issue was conditional on the share premium
account being credited as a result of the issue of new shares to the public in
connection with the Company’s initial public offering as detailed in note (i)
below.

In connection with the Company’s initial public offering, 184,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.001 each were issued at a price of HK$2.06 per share for a
total cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$379,040,000.
Dealing in the shares of the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
commenced on 27 November 2015.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In order to increase the range of healthcare services offered and to

continually provide comprehensive and integrated healthcare

services for the benefit of the patients, the Group entered into the

following transactions during the six months ended 31 December
2016 and 2015:

(a)

On 27 September 2016, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with a third party to acquire 100% equity
interest in _F/BEEPIZ F AR A F] (formerly known as -
BREBARPMZ A AR 2 F) (“UMP Pudong”) for a
consideration of RMB8.3 million (approximately HK$9.5
million). UMP Pudong is primarily engaged in the provision
of medical services in Shanghai, the PRC.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED /2016/2017 INTERIM REPORT

17. BA& (%)

18.

(e)

(h)

M2015F8 A25 8 - RARHEAEBREITIR
755,000,000 (% &A% 0.01 37T X BARERE SN o

201568 H258 « BREFITRAIETT7.80
BILE BRI A 780 R FR0.01 B TER
f% - BE AR BEAE B A8 390,000 7D A
39,000,000 B &% 0.01 BT LB ©

RIZE2015F 11 A2 BEARARRFEBBHE
ERER - )VARAREAANFR0.01BTE
BRYFAH10RFA0.001 BITEBE - &
£ & A 8 % & & 4390,0007% 7T 5 A
390,000,000 &= /% 0.001 T LA © K (ii)
RN BNETE MR A FE B IE NEESN 4,610,000,000
R A% 0.001 B L@ (RETEZEEAR
AREEROGEERSEZ) ARAEE
5,000,000 77T °

BIER2015F11 A13HBEAR A KRERB
MEMRAER  BBERGEERAERE
7 R Bl E R A RO BE B R BT
544,200,000 % & AR {8 0.001 A TTIREE A
IRFIEHM R EBR - FROEEFEEAA
A ERAREE R TS () i) mAa
REITHRMD M ARE T A T AR & RE K
b2 -

MARNRBEXAFAEEMS 184,000,000
% & /% 0.001 & T E MR ER TR 2.065 T
BRET MBRAIMEREREBAOR
379,040,000 7T © AR E PRH 2015 F 11
R27 BEBEBHIFARES -

EBEH
AEABBRRERSEE BEATE

R#tES -

5T & M) & A 4 B B AR 62 AR

% REBREZE20169F K 201512
A3TBIEAERARISZIN TR S ¢
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18. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of UMP
Pudong as at the date of acquisition, which are provisional
amounts and are subject to the finalisation of the fair value
estimation, were as follows:

18. ¥BE6tm

(@ (&)
RURE R LB E 2 R RRI B E
raEzrrBEEREER
B RIRKRAIABEMBITE)
LI

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

RGBSR

ZRAREE

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment M BB RERE 235
Trade receivables 2 NI 18
Other receivables H b fE U FRIE 1,481
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 110
Other payables and accruals H A A 5RIE N e B (958)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARBEFMEZAIBANEEFEER 886
Goodwill on acquisition WY 2 B & 8,602
Satisfied by cash NIREHEE 9,488

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$18,000 and
HK$1,481,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts
of trade receivables and other receivables were HK$18,000
and HK$1,481,000, respectively.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$245,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and
are included in other expenses, net in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2016/2017 F EsReE / A S S EAR AR

RUEE BB 5 pE k1A R H A fE
WRIBE 2 AR EESD R A18,000
770 % 1,481,00078 70 - & 5 JE UK
SRIAR E A FEUGRIA 2 & #B R 5
711518,0007 7T % 1,481,000/ 7T °

AEERLBEBRBEERZHA
245,000 7T c ZEX HKAE T
BERT ABRLEREBERZE
fth S R EE o

69



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

S BA %R & P H B A dR R Y 5

18. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

70

(a)

(Continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of UMP Pudong because
the consideration paid for the acquisition effectively included
amounts in relation to the benefits of expected synergies from
combining operations of UMP Pudong and the Group. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Since the acquisition, UMP Pudong contributed HK$778,000
to the Group’s revenue and loss of HK$118,000 to the
consolidated profit for the six months ended 31 December
2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the six
months ended 31 December 2016, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the six months ended 31
December 2016 would have been HK$251,924,000 and
HK$2,832,000, respectively.

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED /2016/2017 INTERIM REPORT

18. ¥BE6tm

(a)

(#8)
RRREEFHRENZREERE
EEREs LEMERAREEE
ZTEHIm R EN S 28 - K
BLEMBELNE BN REYL
TR A A HA BT EE AR
£ BTN I 8 B R D F R
R o S EC R B A MRS
HURL ©

BUEELAR « BB E AREE K
= AR 778,000 7T M AEZE 2016
F12A31HIEANEA 2GR
BEETE 118,000/8 T °

BREAHEREZ=2016F12 A311
LSRR AT - AIARERE 2 e
NAREEFHZE2016F12 31 BHIEX
&l A < % % # 5 5l £&251,924,000
7T 2,832,000/87T °
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18. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

(b)

18. ¥BE6tm

On 30 October 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity (b) 2015 10H30H @ "EE AR
interest in /SRR RIEH RSB PR A A (“Shanghai Eaton ETREARES1BET(HEER6.2
Consulting”) from Guangzhou Ruian Enterprise Management BEET)ABEMNKLREERAR
Company Limited for a cash consideration of RMB5.1 million PR FIUCRE | 9  SR AR o R AR 7S
(equivalent to HK$6.2 million). Shanghai Eaton Consulting BREAR( LEREREZHA]D
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision 100% s f o E/8 B R AR i 56 7 &
of healthcare and medical services in the PRC. HIFB AR EZRERFRRMR
2 Ko BE B AR o
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of EeREREZ AN RSN
Shanghai Eaton Consulting as at the date of acquisition, BREERBENAAEBEER
which were provisional amounts and were subject to the TESBERBETAAEEMGM
finalisation of the fair value estimation, were as follows: TE)IT :
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
R B R R R
A EE
HK$'000
THET
Property, plant and equipment W% -~ BEM&RE 3,793
Inventories 8 176
Trade receivables B Z WA 865
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FEfJ3RIB « R&F S R EH B FRIE 12,161
Cash and cash equivalents Be B ZEY 6,712
Trade payables B Z N FIA (945)
Other payables, accruals and deferred income H i FEIFRIE - FEFT 2B RIELEWA (8,748)
Tax payable FERTHIE (412)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value ARAEETIREAIHAIEEFEERE 13,602
Non-controlling interests FEFERR M £ (3,895)
Gain on bargain purchase recognised in R RRZE B R E AR A
other income and gains in the condensed NS TERE & E R E WA
consolidated statement of profit or loss (3,499)
Satisfied by cash NHReEE 6,208
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18. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

72

(b)

(Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$865,000 and
HK$10,571,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts
of trade receivables and other receivables were HK$865,000
and HK$10,571,000, respectively.

No transaction cost was incurred for this acquisition.

The gain on bargain purchase of HK$3,499,000 arising from
the acquisition of Shanghai Eaton Consulting was primarily
attributable to the improved operating performance of
Shanghai Eaton Consulting and its subsidiaries during the
period from conclusion of the equity transfer agreement to
the date of the acquisition.

Since the acquisition, Shanghai Eaton Consulting and its
subsidiaries contributed HK$4,429,000 to the Group’s
revenue and loss of HK$76,000 to the consolidated profit for
the six months ended 31 December 2015.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the six
months ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the six months ended 31
December 2015 would have been HK$228,187,000 and
HK$11,543,000, respectively.
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18. ¥ &6t

(b)

(&)

B 5) e WK TE K ELAth B U SR IR AU
BHBEN AR EBESD B AB865,000
BT 10,571,000 7T - B S EWK
FRIERH AR GKIEN G LB ED
51| £ 865,000 7% 7T % 10,571,000 78
=

RRPEREER SR

I ESRRIREEAELERER
B 253,499,000 T Ty EZ AR
LERRREBARENBARN
R IR R R = s B HA LB
B ERIFREFTE -

BURBEDAZE » ISR RREZ AR
HWB AR ARNEBE W EE R
4,429,000 8 T R AEZE 20154 12
A318 LNl A 2 4R 6% F B B
[&548 76,000 7 JT

WMAREZE2015F12 A31 81k
NEAFELE S KEEEZFE2015
F12 A31 B 1N E A K Kg
A #5555l £228,187,00078 7T &
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19.

20.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION BY NON-
CONTROLLING INTEREST

On 15 December 2016, UMP Healthcare China entered into a
subscription agreement with NWS Subsidiary whereby NWS
Subsidiary will subscribe for 20 ordinary shares in UMP Healthcare
China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration
of RMB110 million (approximately HK$123.2 million) (the “UMP
Healthcare China Subscription”). The completion of the UMP
Healthcare China Subscription is subject to certain conditions
precedent, including among others, the approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company. The directors of the
Company expect the UMP Healthcare China Subscription to be
completed before 30 June 2017. Immediately after the UMP
Healthcare China Subscription, UMP Healthcare China will be
owned as to 80% by the Group and 20% by NWS Subsidiary.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties, medical centres
and office equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 6 years.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

19.

20.

FERESNHE

R20165F12 A15H © BEA B I
BIZKI B AR ] — 1D R R - UL
BIEMBRAREREASEZENBA

RIBABBTREM20KRE B REA
AE%HOE%ﬁMmmzﬁéﬁﬁXfﬁ
AEBTEREEE]) - ERBABESP

BRI EEX RS TR EEMRER - &
REEARARBYRERRE - RARE
EIEHR A BT ERESEGN 2017
F6H30H ZRITEAK - RFEES BEH

EREEE B BEBETRRGHEASE
E % B 80% M AR K A 3T B 2 B A A
B8 20% HIRSHE °

REHERRE
BRI BT S 2R B T

DYE - BHFORBARE - HEY
X BBEBEANT 1 Z6F -

R2016F 12 A31H  AREBRERT
B EMON AR REEEMNESBE
MEIEAERAT

31 December 30 June
2016 2016
201612831 H 20166 A30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (FeEZ)
Within one year —FR 33,425 34,748
In the second to fifth years, inclusive “EFERF(BREEEMRT) 36,291 62,890
69,716 97,638
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21. COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 20
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

21. A&IE

B £ P RE 20 FEAt MY AR B B AR SN
REERBERAREATERANE

31 December 30 June
2016 2016
201612 A 31H 201656 A30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&EZ)
Contracted, but not provided for: EETHB AR

Leasehold improvements HEWMEERE 400 2,065
Medical equipment BRR® 25 5,782
Computer equipment and software BRI 4,283 -

Capital contribution payable to NFEERFHPEE
joint ventures - 30,060
4,708 37,907

In addition, the Group’s share of the joint ventures’ own capital

o AEEDIERERRINEAENR

commitments, which are not included in the above, is as follows: AECRETA LSO T ¢
31 December 30 June
2016 2016
201612 A 31H 20166 H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (IeEZ)
Contracted, but not provided for EEEREE L 1,668 20,884
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial statements, the Group had the

22. BBARS
() BREREREBLERGS P
2 EL T H SRR 5~ R
GEERSN » AREEP NG FEA

following material transactions with related parties during the 5
period:
Six months ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEXEA
2016 2015
2016 20154
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt = THERT T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEEZ)
Associates: B E
Administrative support fee income  {THE X 1E B W A (i) 240 298
Professional services expense BERBER (ii) 2,491 3,869
Healthcare services income BB (RIERRTS WA (iii) 178 164
Joint ventures: A& Aa]:
Administrative support fee income TR R BULA (i) 38 2,957
Professional services expense HERKER (i) 438 -
Related companies*: E2)i /NI A
Property rental and related ekl e
expenses MERER < (iv) 2,783 2,556
Contract healthcare solution BB IREEMRR
services income 7 RARBUA v) 5,899 5,703
Management fee income BEEBRA (vi) - 993
Professional services expense HERBEH (vii) - 487
¢ Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the Company are * ARAETEER RESZRRTB

also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of these related

companies.

ZEWBARNEER, HEHRR o

2016/2017 F EsReE / A S S EAR AR
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

76

(@

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The administrative support fee income was related to administrative
support services, such as payroll services, rendered by the Group and
was charged at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare services
rendered by associates and joint ventures and was charged at terms
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The healthcare services income was related to medical services
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

The property rental and related expenses were related to the leasing of
certain medical centres or premises for the Group’s operation and were
charged at terms stipulated in the respective tenancy agreements.

Contract healthcare solution services income was related to the
provision of healthcare services to the employees of related companies
and was charged at terms mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The management fee income was related to the administrative and
human resources services rendered by the Group and was charged at a
monthly fixed fee starting from 1 November 2014. The related
company became a subsidiary of the Group starting from 30 October
2015.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare services
rendered by a related company and was charged at a monthly fixed fee
starting from 1 January 2015. The related company became a subsidiary
of the Group starting from 30 October 2015.
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22. BEBARS (@)

@@ (&)
M

(i) TRZEERAGREERHGIZRGHT
BIRE Z GERE BB BIRS ST R
MRIHEE

(i) HFERBEMEBEATREEDRRMD
BERR R ERI A AR AELERD
TR

(i) BRFRERERA R EEIBHIIZERR
A ERBEZ GERRENBRREEME -

(iv) PEESFABAXERASEZERES
TEBHOREESAAREEERARTE
ZHERBERR -

v  EAHERRERRNERBKALERBEBR
AR R BRI IR 58 B )7 B AR E 2 6K
W i B R AR I RIS A BE

vi) EBEBRABRASEERMELE2014F11 781
AR ESARREEEANTRRADE
BRI HRE - B AR E2015F10830H
BANEEMEQR -

(vii) BERKERE—FERHARRENE 2015
FIRATARBREREARDREEERNRE
RIEREHER - BB R B 2015410 A30
ARAREENBAR -
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 22. AR S (8
(b) Other transactions with related parties (b) HMEKERS
Professional services fees paid to an executive director of the AR A —BMITES RAT&KE
Company and the key management personnel of the former EARIZEBERABSNAEBMA
ultimate holding company in relation to the rendering of AEBREEERERBHEER
healthcare services to the Group are as follows: FEREMT

Six months ended 31 December
BZ12A3181EXEA

2016 2015

2016 20155

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT THETT

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RRER) (REEER)

An executive director (note (i) —Z#rTEE (IR >) 1,558 1,751
Key management personnel of AR ER AR ZEE

the former ultimate holding B2 A B (KIaE i)

company (note (ii)) - 2,004

1,558 3,755

Notes: FfzE -

(i) The professional services fee related to healthcare services rendered by (i) BERBEERARARNITETHEXER
Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael an executive director of the Company. BARMMNBRREREAR -

(if) The professional services fees included in the above were related to (ii) FPA LX) B ERTS & AR AL E
healthcare services rendered by certain shareholders and directors of BETRENE QR Z I REERAR
the former ultimate holding company of subsidiaries now comprising BE TR RESN20145F12 A30
the Group prior to the completion of the Reorganisation on 30 Bl EARR MM BERERESE
December 2014. -
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

22.

AR S (&)
(0 ZFEETETEASTMH

Six months ended 31 December
HE12A831HIEAEA

2016 2015

2016 F 20154

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHET

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RRER) (REEZ)

Short term employee benefits R HE SR 4,698 3,132

Post-employment benefits BEER IR B A 65 76

Equity-settled share option expense N E R ER 3,628 2,448
Total compensation paid to SNTEEERABH

key management personnel e EaEEl 8,391 5,656

23. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

78

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables, accruals
and deferred income, balances with a joint venture and associates
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities/no fixed terms of repayments of these instruments or the
effect of discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.
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23. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2016 (unaudited)

BER @)

D[REEER

BER

BARBHENENEE
A20165F12 A 31 H (REHFR)

Fair value measurement using

AREEFERANEE

TREIAKEESBTANA

23. ERMITEMAREBERAAE

AEER

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BEATHE EATATEE
ERTERE WABE BABE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%) (B=#) (B=#) st
HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET TER TER TER
Available-for-sale investments: AHHERE
Debt investments BHIRE - 24,890 = 24,890
Equity investments at fair value BAORBEFELE
through profit or loss AER R RERE 2,069 = = 2,069
2,069 24,890 - 26,959
As at 30 June 2016 (audited) 20164 6 A 30 B (&F%)
Fair value measurement using
ARBEERANEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BAUBR FASTHER
ERTERE A B ABIE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%) (B=H) (B=H) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TEL TAET
Available-for-sale investments: AHEERE
Debt investments RHIRE = 5,497 = 5,497
Equity investments at fair value BARBEHELE
through profit or loss ANBZ R RIERE 2,026 - - 2,026
2,026 5,497 - 7,523
2016/2017 R EASRE / G B = E AR AR 79
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23.

24.

80

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

During the period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3 for financial assets (six months ended 31 December
2015: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2016 (30 June 2016: Nil).

APPROVAL OF THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 23
February 2017.
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Definitions

BE

“THFY2016”
[2016 MR E+4F ]

“1HFY2017”
[2017 A BVFE EH4F |

“Affiliated Clinic(s)”

RiEEL

“Affiliated Doctor(s)”,
“Affiliated Dentist(s)” or
“Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Provider(s)”

(B8 A | - [H5e)s T B8
[ Bt B 9% B AR A 1R i |

“Announcement”

“Audit Committee”

[B%ZEE
“Auxiliary Services”

[ 5 B AR 7% |

“Auxiliary Services Provider(s)”

[ B RIS PR |

six months ended 31 December 2015;
HZE2015F12 A31 BLEAEAR

six months ended 31 December 2016;
BHZE2016F 12 A31 BIENEAR

clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or
will enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical
Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members;
VIBARELLEAERKEREAKET B HENDH - BUAGEE
SRMHERRY  TRIRS &S EH B R

doctor(s)/dentist(s)/auxiliary services provider(s) who has entered or will enter
into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services to Plan
Members and who, in accordance with the terms of such agreement, has
received or will receive an amount from the Group based on the volume of
Plan Members treated;
ERCHEEEAEE I IBRIEERE TESENEBE TE HE)
RIGIRMHE - RBEZZEHRGR  BECIBHEREZHNHEEEHERAK
& B EGRIR

the announcement of the Company dated 15 December 2016 in relation to,
among other things, the disposal of UMP Management and UMP
Management Il to HAML, the subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare
China by NWS Subsidiary and the subscription of new shares in UMP
Healthcare (Beijing) by UMP Healthcare China;

AREEHR2016F12 AI5AZRE  AREAH (AP REB)NBREE
ERHEBSBBERERMABBEEE=  MARNBARREHSE
T B RO R R0 BB & B 7 P B AR B & B s (AL RO e

the audit committee of the Board;

ExeR I ERREBE:

includes imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy, traditional Chinese
medicine, vision care and optometry and child health assessment;
BRESFEIMBRYE - WIAE T8 RMUEERBIUREER
BRI

auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the
Group as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in the UMP Medical
Centres in accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the
Group, and the Affiliated Auxiliary Service Providers;

ELA R AR AEERERERAREREAREE R T 60 R #00 5R
EBA BT L AREEH B RBOEBRGIRMEE - L RB BRI R
e
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Definitions

BE

“Board”

-y

//BVI//
[RERAAS]

“Circular”

“Code of Conduct for

Securities Transactions

by Employees”
[EEEITEFR HWRFER]]

“Company” or “UMP”

[ARE)] 3 [ A 85

“Contract Customers”

“CR Phoenix”

[ 5 IR 2 B8 2%

“CR Phoenix Healthcare Group”
[FEHEEEREE]

the board of Directors of the Company;
ZAUNCIN-& 5

the British Virgin Islands;
RBRIEE

the circular of the Company dated 8 February 2017 in relation to, among
other things, the disposal of UMP Management and UMP Management Il to
HAML, the subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare China by NWS
Subsidiary and the subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
by UMP Healthcare China;

ARFEHB2017F2A8AZEN - RRER (AP EB)MBREEE
BEHERMABEKEEMBABHEES =  FAEZNBARRBH SRS
o B T A A K Bk & B S R B SR BB B B A (AL ) ORTRRAD

the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees as adopted by
the Company;

RABIFERAEEBETES X HHRTER

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws
of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 5 November 2014, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 722);

BEBBEEAERAR - —MRN2014F 11 A5 BRRBRSHESEETMAK
MHBRAF Eﬂxfﬁﬁ/\\iﬁ%ﬁﬁz“ﬁﬁiﬁtm (B % : 722)

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered or
will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits for
Plan Members;

et Sl B BEFRRENE HEARETLERAINRR AR REE
H SRR

China Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as Phoenix Healthcare Group Co. Ltd.), a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and listed on the Main Board of the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1515);

EHREBEZERERAR (FIE BEBREEERAR]) —HERS
BEEMAZLET BB RAMER TR E (B : 1515)

CR Phoenix and its subsidiaries;

EFHREBRENEHMBA
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Definitions

BE

“Corporate Governance Code”
[ ER TR

“CR Phoenix Subsidiary”

[ERRERENE AT

“Dental Services”

[ ZF RHR TS )

“Dentist(s)”

[oF &8 ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“Doctor(s)”

(B4 ]

“general practitioner” or
“general practice”

(2R84 ] =k [ 2R EE]

“Global Offering”

[ 2 IREE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules;

EiRBIME 14 FE R ERTE

Pinyu Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of BVI with limited
liability, which is a substantial shareholder of the Company and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of CR Phoenix;

mtARAR] —HRERBELHSAEEMKILZBRAR] > BAQ
Al TERRREHAEBRNEZ 2 EMBAR

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and secondary
dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics, implants and
whitening;
BIEEARTRIBRES (AT R ) AR E —BARRE (T8 RTHE -
ALl - EEkFExa) :

dentist(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant
to provide Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with
the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated
Dentists;

ELS K ERIAERE RIS SRR AR R AR B 2R 5] 6 R 1 2 50 161
RS BT ORRERENTE - ANBETEE

the director(s) of the Company;
KARES

doctor(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant
to provide Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with
the terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated
Doctors;

ERRAGEE AR BRI QR DA IR 8178 5 B 28 5T 6 A R 175 2 A R 3K
EMEBHR ONEHRRENESE - ARBEEE

doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of
contact for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to the
appropriate specialists or services as required;

EX2RIRNEBLE  REARBRERHTAXDE  CAARFEENE
EREAEMAIRBAF A

the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and
outside the United States of America in offshore transactions in reliance on
Regulation S, the details of which are set out in “Structure of the Global
Offering” of the Prospectus;

ARRBAFERRRKESROIERFERE RBERINBEREZHTHEN
Bfn - HIFERBRER [2RBEEHNRE]
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Definitions

BE

"o

“Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”

[ARSRm ] 3 [$hA]

“HAML”
[EREEERE]

“Healthcare Management Model”

[EEEREBE IR

“Healthcare Ventures”

[ Healthcare Ventures |

//HK$// or //HKD//
[7&7T]

“Hong Kong”
(&4

“Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Services”

[ B8 KR PR PR B AR AR 2 AR 75

“Hong Kong & Macau Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services”

[BEMRFIEEBRRE
FRORTT ZR IR

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
[ B P

“Listing Rules”

[ R A

the Company and its subsidiaries;

RAFREMBRR

Healthcare Assets Management Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, which is owned as to 50% by Healthcare
Ventures and 50% by NWS Subsidiary as at the date of this report;
BEEEEEBARAR  —HARBEEZMALZBERAR  RAREHH
F Healthcare Ventures & #7121 B A 71 & B %A 50%

the Group’s business model that is founded on the basis that general
practitioners are best suited to serve as the first point of contact for patients
given their training in family medicine;

AEENEBEARRENER TREBSIRNEMBLEREAREE
REFRDEE B

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of BVI with limited liability, which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited;

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited + — IR ¥ 5 8 iE 2 B & A2 K
YHERAR  REARBNEIERREARBERERAFNEEE2EN

BAR]:

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

BREEERET

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
FEEBFRTTHE

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients as described in
“Business Overview and Outlook” of this report;

M8 ERERHEABRRERY - ARE [ZBEBELERE ] i

provision of corporate healthcare solutions as described in “Business
Overview and Outlook” of this report;

RECEBBRREZEATER - IARSE [EEEEARRE] prt

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;
BEBMARSHMARAR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited;
BRMARHAERARES EMAA
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Definitions

BE

“Macau”

[P ]

“Medical” or “Medical Services”

[Ee ] ok [ B8 AR 7% )
“Model Code”
[fZ2E=FA

//NM//
[BE&ETK

//NWS//

Eip-lr=d

“NWS Subsidiary”

[FralEHEAaE ]

“Plan Members”

[HEI& 8]

“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”
[BRAFEERBERESS]
“PRC”

[FE]

“PRC Corporate Healthcare
Solutions & Clinical
Healthcare Business” or
“PRC Developing Business”

[PEEEBERREERT R
KRB BRRERS] 3
[BEREPHPEER]

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
R BURPIRFRIITIRE

includes general practice and specialist practice;
BREMBERLRENER

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules;
ETHRRIMEI0E EMBEITAZTSTETERRZNFELETA

not meaningful;

BEETK:

NWS Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability and listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 659);

MAEEEERAR  —RARBREIMAIZINEGRAR  REBBM
R (B 5 : 659)

Dynamic Ally Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of NWS;

Dynamic Ally Limited * —fR BB MK IOBER AR - AFEIEAMEE
2EWMBAR

members of the Group’s corporate healthcare benefits plans, who typically
include group medical insurance policyholders and employees of
corporations and/or their dependants;

FEECXEFREBNAEEE  —RERKEERRBRARESAEAR
BEHNES R HRERS

the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 2
November 2015
EFEEN2015F 11 A2 BLE RO B R RFEERBREE

the People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan);

i \RAFE (RARETS - FREES RPIRAE

development of corporate healthcare solutions and clinical healthcare
services in China as described in “Business Overview and Outlook” of this
report;

TEBRRERRATRELBRBERRERGRTENER  OARE (X
BRBRERE | A
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Definitions

BE

“PRC Health Check-up
Business”

[ B B iR R 75

“Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme”

[ERRFEERBRETS]

“Prospectus”

[HERER]

“Remuneration Committee”

EdE b

//RMB//
AR

“Self-paid Patients”

[BEBEE]

“SFO”
[ %8 7 M EAE 150 ]

“Shanghai He Dun”
[EEE%

4

“Share Award Scheme’
[F&1n 82 a2l |
“Share(s)”

(B f7 |

86

provision of check-up services for (i) PRC residents traveling abroad for study
or for work and (ii) for corporate employees as described in “Business
Overview and Outlook” of this report;

A0 2BINE R TR T BIfE R I (i) R R EBREERIRTY - ARE
[EA5EIEKREE ] Pt :

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 18
August 2015;
EEXEMN20158 A 18 B E MKMW E R MBS BREE

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015;
ARFRER2015F11 B17 BBKEIR

the remuneration committee of the Board;

EFEEFMEEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC;

FEIAEEEARE :

patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and pay for
services using cash or credit card;
IAEEZENBABHERORLLERBRERERARINARBERNE
&

the Securities and Futures Ordianace (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended and supplemented from time to time;

FEEDIFE 571 ECEZ LB RG] - EAEHERT RAT

FEAHEEREAR AR, a company established in the PRC;
FEEHBEREMBRERAR - —HRPEKIHAF

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June
2016;
EEEN2016%F 6 A 30 A ATHLAE R ERAROA LD S2RDAT &) -

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital
of the Company;
AR AIBRAF ZRREEO0.001 BITH E A ;
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Definitions

BE

“specialist practice” or
“specialist services”

[ERIEE] = [ FERBR 5

“UMP Healthcare

(Beijing)”
(Bt & BE %5 (b =) B

“UMP Healthcare China”

(B & BT B

UMP offers a range of specialist practice, including Cardiology,
Dermatology, Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family Medicine,
Gastroenterology and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal Medicine,
Nephrology, Neurology, Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and Gynaecology,
Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and Traumatology, Otorhinolaryngology
(ENT), Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery, Radiology, Respiratory Medicine,
Rheumatology and Urology. Please see www.ump.com.hk for the updated
list of specialist practices;

BaBHREHN—RINEHNER
KA REBSZ - 55 MR -
TREHNEL - RERE - REL - BRI RAIGH - BSWMRR - 2R
MER - FRAR BEMEMEN  ERNEREHRB

www.ump.com.hk :

C BRRLEER - RER - AW BB R
B@INEE S AR BRR - R
J SN -

BEHEL2H

UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited (to be renamed as “UMP Healthcare
(Beijing) Group Limited”, subject to the Registrar of Corporate Affairs of BVI
approving the change of company name), a company incorporated under
the laws of BVI with limited liability and owned by UMP Healthcare China
and CR Phoenix Subsidiary as to 50%, respectively, as at the date of this
report and will be owned by UMP Healthcare China and CR Phoenix
Subsidiary as to 70% and 30%, respectively, upon completion of the
subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare (Beijing) by UMP Healthcare
China as described in the Announcement and the Circular;
UMP Phoenix Healthcare Limited ( # 5 % /& [UMP Healthcare (Beijing)
Group Limited ] - HZAFF RBRE XS R A FHEMEE RIEER QA
ZREDAMEE)  —RARBRABREZESAMZEMKRINBRAF KA
BEAY BAMABHTERERREBENBARSEHE50%Ea
REZ A R ek Al B & B8 75 h B S B RR BB B & B8 15 (AL 30 T AR (2 12 15
BeBkTELEHEREENERRDRES 70% K 30% s

UMP Healthcare China Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman Islands with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as at the date of this report which will be owned
as to 80% indirectly by the Company and 20% by NWS Subsidiary upon
completion of the subscription of new shares in UMP Healthcare China by
NWS Subsidiary as described in the Announcement and the Circular;

UMP Healthcare China Limited © —fEIRIEF 2B &AHIFEMAZOBR L
A RAREEHR/ARANEEZ2ENBRR] - KA RS K@K AT &)
HMEZHB AR TXABHABHTENFRNESAARRREES
80% HE 2 N £ ¥ BIE T /B8 2 A1 20% 1k
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Definitions

BE

“UMP Management”

“UMP Management 11"

“UMP Medical Centre”
[Bta B0

“UMP Network”

[UMP 484% |

“UMP Pudong”

[ L fhs 8

“Us$”
ESd

UMP Medical Centre Management Limited, a company incorporated under
the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of UMP Healthcare (Beijing) as at the date of this report which will be
owned by HAML upon completion of the disposal as described in the
Announcement and the Circular;

BeBBHROERERAR  —RAREFBEVEMAZHARIA K
ARBERBR é‘ﬁé%ﬁ%(il@?)ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ%‘%@ﬂ SEREVN=I Py
MEESHRRHBREEEERSA

UMP Medical Centre Management (lll) Limited, a company incorporated
under the laws of Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of UMP Healthcare China as at the date of this report which will
be owned by HAML upon completion of the disposal as described in the
Announcement and the Circular;

BEBHHLER(E)ARAT - —HREFEAMEMKIHEGRA
T RATRE BB ﬁﬁé%ﬁ“qjlﬁ’]’z\ﬁﬁﬂ‘% Al - MIERZ DS M

AHHEFRRHBEREEETEES

medical centre offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary
Services which is operated by the Group;

REBBERY - TBRER SBHRBHBBET L - AREELE

consists of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and (ii)
Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but which has
entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members;
BREOAKRELLNBABHETORBBZ A (LIFHAKEEEND
P BERAKEIZHER B R REERERE - FRIRSE kR
BhARHS)

LEBEMZHAR AT (FIELEREBRPIZEBRAF), a company
established in the PRC; and

8 55% Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ A (AT /B RBRFIZHERAFR) - —HEPE
BAVE: YN

US dollar, the lawful currency of the United States of America.

XBEDREEBET °
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